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NOTICE OF NINETEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Nineteenth Annual General Meeting of Laxmi Dental Export
Private Limited will be held on Thursday, 21st, September, 2023 at 09.30 a.m. at Grand Hyatt
Mumbai Hotel and Residences, Bandra Kurla Complex Vicinity, Mumbai,
Maharashtra, India, 400055 to transact the following business:

AGENDA

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Standalone and Consolidated Balance Sheet
as on 31st March, 2023, Profit & Loss Account, and Notes to Financial Statements for the
year ended on that date together with the Directors Report and the Auditors Report
thereon.

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone as well as Consolidated Balance Sheet, the
Statement of Profit and Loss Account, Cash Flow Statement and other financial statements
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 together with the accounting policies, notes
forming part of the accounts, Auditors' Report and Directors' Report, thereon be and are
hereby received, considered and adopted by the Members of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESSES:

2. To Regularize the appointment of Additional Director, Ms. Sumona Chakraborty
(DIN: 09597426) as non-executive nominee Director of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following
resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152, 161 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and any rules made there under, and provisions of the
Article of Association of the Company, Ms. Sumona Chakraborty (DIN: 09597426), who was
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the Board of Directors in the Board Meeting
held on 30/08/2023 to hold office up to the date of this Annual General meeting (AGM) held on this
21/09/2023, be and is hereby elected and appointed as non-executive nominee Director of the
Company to represent OrbiMed Asia II Mauritius Limited on the Board of Directors of the
Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited Company.
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company be and is hereby authorised to file
DIR-12 e-forms and other required documents with ROC, Mumbai to do all acts, deeds, and things
as may be necessary in this regard.

3. To consider any other matter with the permission of the Chairman.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For and Behalf of:
Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited

N

Rajesh Khakhar
Chairman
DIN: 00679903

Date: 06th September, 2023
Place: Mumbai, Maharashtra.

Registered Office:

103, Akruti Arcade,

J.P. Road, Opp. A.H. Wadia School,
Andheri (West),

Mumbai - 400058
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NOTES:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote in instead himself/herself and a proxy need not
be a member of the Company.

2. The Instrument appointing proxy/proxies, in order to be effective, must be
deposited at the registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting.

3. A person to act as a proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding 50 and holding in
aggregate not more than 10 per cent of the total share capital of the company carrying
voting rights. A member holding more than 10 per cent of the total share capital of the
company carrying voting rights may appoint single person as proxy and such person
shall not act as a proxy of the other person or shareholder.

4. A Corporate Member intending to send its authorised representatives to attend the
Meeting in terms of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requested to send to the
company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing such representative to
attend and vote on its behalf at the Meeting.

5. Members/Proxies are requested to bring the attendance slips dully filled in along with
their copy of the Annual Report to the Meeting.

6. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the accounts and the
operations of the Company are requested to address their questions in writing to the
Company at least 7 (seven) days before the date of the Meeting, so that the information
required may be made available at the meeting.

7. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holders who is higher in

the order of names will be entitled to vote.
For Laxmi Degntal Export Private Limited
\ﬁ%j N
w

Rajesh Khakhar
Chairman
DIN: 00679903
Registered Office:
103, Akruti Arcade,
J.P. Road, Opp. A.H. Wadia School,

Andheri (West), Mumbai — 400058
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 WITH RESPECT TO THE SPECIAL BUSINESSES
MENTIONED IN THE NOTICE.

ITEM NO.2

Ms. Sumona Chakraborty (DIN-09597426), was appointed as an Additional Director of the
Company in the Board Meeting held on August 30, 2023 by the Board of Directors till the
conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received consent from
Ms. Sumona Chakraborty to be regularized as Director of the Company under applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board of directors has recommended to pass
resolution as an ordinary resolution.

None of the directors of the company is directly or indirectly interested or concerned in the
resolutions apart from the Ms. Sumona Chakraborty whose appointment is under
consideration.

For Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited

7

Rajesh Khakhar
Chairman
DIN: 00679903

Registered Office:
103, Akruti Arcade, J.P. Road, Opp. A.H. Wadia School,

Andheri (West), Mumbai — 400058
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Annexure to Notice of Annual General Meeting
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: US51507MH2004PTC147394

Name of the Company: Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited

Registered Office: 103, Akruti Arcade, J.P. Road, Opp. A.H. Wadia High School,
Andheri(west), Mumbai- 400058

Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address:

E-mail id:

Folio No/ Client id:

I/We being a member(s) of ............ Shares of the above named Company hereby appoint:

1. Name:
Address:
E-mail id:

Signature: , or failing him/her;

2. Name:
Address:
E-mail id:

Signature: ,

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Meeting of
equity shareholders of the Company, to be held on Thursday, 21st September, 2023 at 09:30
AM at Grand Hyatt Mumbai Hotel and Residences, Bandra Kurla Complex Vicinity, Mumbai,
Maharashtra, India, 400055 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions are
indicated herein below:
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Resolution | Resolution Voting Option

No. Please mention no. of share(s))

For Against | Abstain

Ordinary Business:

1 To receive, consider and adopt the audited
Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2023,
Profit & Loss Account, and Notes to Financial
Statements for the year ended on that date
together with the Directors Report and the

Auditors Report thereon

Special Business:

2 To Regularize the appointment of Additional
Director, Ms. Sumona Chakraborty
(DIN: 09597426) as non-executive nominee

Director of the Company

3. Any other discussion with permission of Chair. ;

Signed this .....day of September, 2023

Affix
Revenue
Stamps

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder (s)

Note: This Form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company, before 48 hours of the Commencement of the
Meeting.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
To,
The Member(s),
LAXMI DENTAL EXPORT PRIVATE LIMITED

Your directors have the pleasure in presenting the Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company, together with the audited financial statements of your
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023.

1. Financial Summary or Performance of the Company:
Standalone Consolidated
Financial Financial Financial Financial
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Particulars (Amount in (Amount in (Amount in (Amount in
Lakhs) Lakhs) L:zkhs) Lakhs)
Net Sales/Income from Business 12746 11279 17800 14264
Operations
Other Income 866 422 448 732
Total Gross Income/Total Revenue 13612 11700 18247 14997
Less: Expenditures (13699) (11901) (18331) (15453)
Loss before tax and Exceptional items (87) 201) (84) (456)
LLess: Exceptional items - - (328) (160)
Loss Before Tax (87) (201) (612) (616)
Less: Income Tax - (145) (98) (156)
Less: Deferred Tax - (93) (1) (92)
Net Loss after Tax (87) (439) (711) (865)
Add: Minority Interest in(income)/losses - - (59) 14
Add: Share of Profit in Associate 55 &) (23) (18)
Net Profit/(loss) for the period (32) (444) (793) (869)
Earnings Per Share (Basic) (28) (105) (258) (282)
Earnings Per Share (Diluted) (28) (105) (54) (59)
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2. Results of business operations and the state of company’s affairs

Standalone Results:

Your Company, on a standalone basis, posted a Net Sales of Rupees 12746 Lakhs for the
financial year 2022-23, against last year’s Net Sales of Rupees 11279 Lakhs registering a
growth of 13% due to sustained efforts on the part of the management. The company has
continued its leadership position in both Export and Domestic market. Company has
managed to cut down Net Loss for financial year 2022-23 to Rupees 32 lakh from the last
year’s Net Loss of Rupees 444 Lakhs. The company is confident to achieve positive
profit after tax in the next fiscal with number of new initiatives taken during the year.
Company has implemented advanced dental digital technology to provide aesthetically
superior dental products.

Consolidated Results:

Your Company, on a consolidated basis, posted a Net Sales of Rupees 17800 Lakhs for
the financial year 2022-23, against last year’s Net Sales of Rupees 14264 Lakhs marking
an increase of 24.79%. Company’s Loss before tax and Exceptional items has reduced to
Rupees 84 Lakhs for the financial year 2022-23, against last year’s figure of Rupees 456
Lakhs due to sustained efforts to achieve growth and drive towards profitability.
Company is selling its products in 70+ countries worldwide.

3. Change in nature of business

There is no change in nature of business during the period under review.

4, Declaration of Dividend

No dividend is recommended for the financial year 2022-2023.

5. Transfer of unclaimed dividend to investor eduction and protection fund

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was
no dividend declared and paid during the financial year 2022-2023.

6. Directors’ responsibility statement

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of
Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:
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7.

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for year ended 31/03/2023, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures, if any;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year as on 31/03/2023 and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

¢) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding
the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

¢) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were
operational effectively.

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

Share Capital

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, there was no change or alteration
in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company and it is X. 14,46,00,000
(Rupees Fourteen Crore Forty Six Lakhs only) divided into 24,60,000 Equity Shares
of Z.10/- each (Rupees Ten only) adding to . 2,46,00,000 and 3,00,000 Compulsory
Convertible Preference Shares with voting rights of 2. 400/- (Rupees Four Hundred
only) each adding to . 12,00,00,000. The paid-up equity share capital of the
Company was 2. 11,93,17,940 (Rupees Eleven Crores Ninety Three Lakhs Seventeen
Thousand Nine Hundred and Forty Only) divided into 3,07.914 Equity Shares of
%, 10/- each (Rupees Ten only) adding to X. 30,79.140 and 2,90,597 Compulsory
Convertible Preference Shares with voting rights of 2. 400/~ (Rupees Four Hundred
only) each adding to 2. 11,62,38.800 as on March 31, 2023. There was no right issue
or preferential or bonus issue of equity shares during the year.
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8.

10.

11,

12,

Transfer and Transmission of Shares:

During the Financial Year 2022-2023, the Company had received Transmission
Request Form (TRF) application with the necessary legal documents from Mr. Sameer
Merchant for transmission of 34,660 Equity shares of Rupees 10/- each, owned by
Mrs. Alka Merchant, in his favor due to sad demise of Mrs. Alka Merchant.
The Board of Directors were satisfied with the legal documents produced and
approved the same in Board Meeting dated 29" June, 2022 and revised the
shareholding of Mr. Sameer Merchant in the year 2022-2023.

The company had also received an application letter for transmission of shares
enclosed with Certificate of Amalgamation from OrbiMed Asia II Mauritius Limited
informing the Amalgamation of OrbiMed Asia II Mauritius FDI Investment Limited
with OrbiMed Asia 11 Mauritius Limited and requested the company for completing
the statutory compliance as per Indian Company Act, 2013. Accordingly, the Board of
Directors approved the transmission of 100 equity shares and 2,90,597 Series A
Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares (CCPS) with voting rights by
operation of law in favour of OrbiMed Asia II Mauritius Limited based on the
aforesaid application letter and amalgamation certificate issued by Registrar of
Companies in Mauritius.

Reserves

During the period under review no amount is proposed to be carried to any reserve
account from profit and loss account.

Disclosure about cost audit

The provision of maintenance of cost audit records and filing the same is not
applicable to the Company.

Material changes and commitment if any affecting the financial position of the
company occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial
statement relate and the date of the report

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial
statement relate and the date of this report.

Subsidiaries, Joint ventures and Associate companies

Our Company’s Subsidiaries, Joint Venture and Associates as furnished in
Annexure- AOC-1 and attached to this report.
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13.

14.

16.

| e

Particulars Of Contracts or Arrangements Made With Related Parties

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required
under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures™ specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

All transactions with related parties during FY 2022-23 were reviewed and approved
by the Board of Directors and were at Arm’s Length Price (ALP) and in the Ordinary
Course of Business (OCB).

Pursuant to the third proviso of Section 188(1) of the Act, the compliance with the
provisions of Section 188(1) is not applicable. where all related party transactions are
carried out in the OCB and under ALP basis. Accordingly, the disclosure of RPTs as
required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 in form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for
FY 2022-23.

Revision of Financial Statement

There was no revision of the financial statements for the year under review.

. Conservation Of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings

And Outgo

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, Foreign
Exchange earning, and outgo as required under section 134 (3) (m) of the companies
act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished
in Annexure -A and is attached to this report.

Statement concerning development and implementation of risk management

policy of the company

The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy as the elements of risk
threatening the Company’s existence are very minimal.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy:

The Company has not developed and implemented any policy on Corporate Social
Responsibility initiatives as the provisions of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 are
not applicable to the Company.
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18. Particulars of Loans to Directors, Subsidiary Companies as Interested

Companies of Director under Sec 185 of Companies Act, 2013.

During the financial year 2022-2023 under review, the Company had not granted any
loans to any Directors of the Company.

The Company had advanced loans to Interested Entities of the Directors, in
compliance of Sec 185 of Companies Act, 2013 by passing Special Resolution in
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company and not granted any loan - secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or other parties covered
in the register maintained under the Companies Act 2013 during the year.

19. Particulars of Loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given and Securities
provided under Sec 186 of Companies Act, 2013.
During the financial year 2022-2023 under review, the Company has made fresh new
investments in the following Subsidiary companies / LLP after approvals from Board
of Director’s and such investments are within the limits prescribed under Section 186
of companies Act, 2013.

Sr. | Name of Subsidiary Nature of Transaction Amount
No | Companies 2022-2023
(Rupees)
1. | ECG Plus Technologies Pyt Ltd | Investments in Equity 35,02,254
and Preference Shares
2. | Bizdent Devices Pvt Ltd Investment in Equity 510
Shares
3. | Rich Smile Design LLP Current | Investment in Current 75,73,340
Capital Account Capital Account
4. | Kids-e-Dental LLP Current Investment in Current 46,16,732
Capital Account Capital Account
5. | Techlab Consulting LLP Investments in share of 51,000
LLP Interest
6. | Techlab Consulting LLP Investment in Current 2,87,645
Capital Account

20. Explanation or comments on qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or
disclaimers made by the auditors and/or the practicing company secretary in
their reports
There was no qualification, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in
their report. The provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to
submission of Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable to the Company
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21. Company’s_policy relating to directors appointment, payment of remuneration
and discharge of their duties
The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee are not applicable to the Company and hence the Company
has not devised any policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of
Managerial remuneration, Directors qualifications, positive attributes, independence of
Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

22. Annual return

The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule
12 of the Companies (Management and administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in
MGT-9 and is attached to this Report in Annexure B.

23. Composition & Constitution Of Board Of Directors:-

As on March 31, 2023 the Board of your Company comprises of following Seven

Directors.
Sr.no | Name of Directors | DIN Numbers
1 Rajesh Vrajlal Khakhar | 00679903

‘7 | Sameer Kamlesh Merchant 00679893

iena Rajesh Khakhar

00382796
00382868
00383038
02267273

j Parag Jamnadas Bhimjiyani
Hasmukh Vrajlal Khakhar
Sunny Sharma

24. Board Meeting:

During the year under review. the Board of your company met 13 (Thirteen) times.

During the Financial Year 2022-2023. thirteen meetings of the Board of Directors of the
company were held. Followings are the dates of board meetings which were held during
FY 2022-23,

Sr. | Date of Meeting of | Total Number of | No of Directors
No | Board directors present at the

(DD/MM/YYYY) associated as on | meeting
the date of meeting

|
4
’\.

[T [15.04.2022
06.05.2022
29.06.2022
106208 | o
om’ﬂ;“—i:;
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12.09.2022

31.10.2022

XD

10.11.2022

9 130.11.2022

10 |20.12.2022

11 |21.01.2023

12 1 09.03.2023

NN N NN 99
W lWlwlw|u|w|w|w

13 | 27.03.2023

Details of attendance of Directors at the Meeting of Board of Directors is mentioned

below:
Sr. Name of Director No of Meeting eligible | No of Meetings
No to attend attended
1 Rajesh Vrajlal Khakhar 13 13
2 Sameer Kamlesh Merchant 13 [ 13
3. Jigna Rajesh Khakhar | 13 | |
4. Amrish Mahendrabhai Desai | 13 |
3. Parag Jamnadas Bhimjiyani 13 1
6. Hasmukh Vrajlal Khakhar 13 ]
T Sunny Sharma 13 13
25. Compliance with applicable Secretarial Standards:

26.

27.

The Board of Directors affirms that the Company has complied with applicable
Secretarial Standards (SS) — SS-1: Meeting of the Board of Directors and SS-2: General
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India which have been
mandatory applicable during the year under review.

Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) act, 2013

The Company has considered and adopted a Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH)
policy and constituted Internal Committee in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under
this preventive policy.

During the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

Human Resources:

The well-disciplined workforce which has served the company for several years lies at
the very foundation of the company’s major achievements and shall well continue for
the years to come. The management has always carried out systematic appraisal of
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28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33

34.

performance and imparted employee training at periodic intervals. The company has
always recognized talent and has judiciously followed the principle of rewarding
performance.

Declaration of independent directors

The provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to the
appointment of Independent Directors do not apply to our Company.

Disclosure of composition of audit committee and providing vigil mechanism

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of
the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to
the Company.

Issue of Shares:

a) Equity shares with differential rights: The Company has not issued any equity
share with differential rights during the year under review.

b) Buy Back of Securities: The Company has not bought back any of its securities
during the year under review.

¢) Sweat Equity: The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the
year under review,

d) Bonus Shares: No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.

Employees Stock Option Plan:

The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals

impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future

No significant or material orders were passed by the any Regulators or Courts or

Tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

. Change in registered office of the company

There is no change in nature of business during the period under review.

Insurance

The Company has adequately igfsured the Company’s Properties.
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35. Remuneration of employees:
The Company had no employee during the year covered under Rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
36. Related Party Transactions:
There were transactions with related parties, the disclosures are provided in notes of
the financial report and also names and nature of transactions are mentioned in
Annexure AOC-2.
37. Internal controls:
The Board is of the opinion that there exists adequate internal controls commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company.
38. Statutory Auditors:
M/s. ABHAY SUBHASH & ASSOCIATES., Firm Registration No. 112196W,
Chartered Accountant represented by its proprietor Mr. ABHAY MORI having
Membership No. 036403 were appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company at
the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on 28/01/2021 who shall hold the
office as Independent Statutory Auditor for a period of 5 (Five) Financial Years until
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held for financial year ending
2025.
39. Acknowledgement

Your Directors take this opportunity to convey their deep sense of gratitude for
valuable assistance and co-operation extended to the Company by all valued
customers, banker and various departments of government and local authorities.
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Your Directors also wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the valued
contribution, unstinted efforts and spirit of dedication shown by the Company
employees, officers and the executives at all levels which contributed, in no small
measure, to the progress and the high performance of the Company during the Year
under review.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For LAXMI DENTAL EXPORT.PRIVATE LIMITE

7
7z
K i :
& /7 A
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iy 4y

RAJESH KHAKHARY;
Director
DIN: 00679903

: EER MERCHANT
Director
DIN: 00679893

Dated: 30th August, 2023,
Place: Mumbai
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MSKA & Associates P —

Western Express Highway, Geetanjali

Chartered Accountants Railway Colony, Ram Nagar,
Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063, INDIA
Tel: +91 22 6974 0200

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements of Laxmi Dental
Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited) (“the Company"), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and
notes to the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information and disclosure (collectively referred to as the
“Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements”). The Special Purpose Standalone Financial
Statements have been prepared by the Management of the Company and approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other recognised accounting principles generally
accepted in India.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
accompanying Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2023, are prepared in all material aspects, in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles of Indian Accounting Standards and other recognised accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) specified under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those SAs are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities section of our report for the audit of the Special Purpose
Standalone Financial Statements. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters
1. Basis of preparation and Restriction on distribution and use

We draw attention to Note 2.1 to the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements which
describes the purpose and basis of preparation of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial
Statements. The Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared by the
Company solely for the purpose of preparation of the Restated Consolidated Financial Information of
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the Company to be included in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (“DRHP”), Red Herring Prospectus
(“RHP™) and Prospectus (collectively referred to “Offer Documents”) in connection with its proposed
initial public offering of equity shares as required by Section 26 of Part | of Chapter Ill of the
Companies Act, 2013 and as required under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to time (the "SEBI
ICDR Regulations”) and to comply with the SEBI Communication and the Guidance Note on Reports in
Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI. As a result, these
Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements may not be suitable for any another purpose.

Our report is addressed to the Board of Directors of the Company solely for the purpose as
mentioned above. This should not be distributed to or used by any other parties. M S K A &
Associates shall not be liable to the Company or to any other concerned for any claims, liabilities or
expenses relating to this assignment. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any
duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into
whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

2. Compliances under Foreign Exchange Management Act Regulations

We draw attention to Note 48 to the special purpose standalone financial statements which state
that trade receivable outstanding from one of it’s related parties amounting to INR 128.39 million
includes foreign currency receivable amounting to INR 43.12 million outstanding for a period of
more than nine months as on March 31, 2023. This has resulted in non-compliances of various
regulations, circulars and notifications issued under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999
(“FEMA Regulations”). However, subsequent to March 31, 2023, the Company has collected entire
balance outstanding for a period more than 9 months as on March 31, 2023.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for Special Purpose
Standalone Financial Statements

The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with recognition and measurement
principles of Indian Accounting Standards and other recognised accounting principles generally
accepted in India for the purpose set out in paragraph above, and this includes design,
implementation, and maintenance of such internal controls as management determines necessary to
enable the preparation of these Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Page 2 of 6

Head Office: 602, Floor 6, Raheja Titanium, Western Express Highway, Geetanjali Railway Colony, Ram Nagar, Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063, INDIA, Tel: +91 22 6238 051_9
Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chennai | Goa | Gurugram | Hyderabad | Kochi | Kolkata | Mumbai | Pune www.mska.in



MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants

In preparing the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Standalone
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Special Purpose
Standalone Financial Statements.

Other Matters

1. The Statutory Standalone Financial Statements of the Company prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read together with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, were
audited by another auditor Abhay Subhash & Associates whose report dated August 30, 2023,
expressed an unmodified opinion.

2. As informed to us by the management of the Company, the predecessor auditor do not hold a valid
peer review certificate as issued by the ‘Peer Review Board’ of the ICAl and have therefore,
expressed their inability to perform any work on the Restated Financial information for the year
ended March 31, 2023 to be included in Offer Documents. Accordingly, in accordance with the SEBI
ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued
by the ICAI, and pursuant to SEBI Communication, we have audited the Special Purpose Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023.

3. Since we were not the statutory auditors of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, we had
not participated in the physical verification of inventories that was carried out by the management
as of the year end. Accordingly, we have performed alternate procedures to audit the existence of
inventory as per the guidance provided in SA 501 "Audit evidence Specific consideration for selected
items" and have obtained sufficient appropriate evidence.
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4. These Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared solely for the purpose of
preparation of Restated Consolidated Financial Information for inclusion in DRHP in relation to
proposed IPO. Hence these Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements are not suitable for any
other purpose other than for the purpose of preparation of Restated Consolidated Financial

Information. Accordingly, no comparative figures are also presented in these Standalone Financial
Statements.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

W
Nitin Tiwari
Partner
Membership No. 118894
UDIN: 24118894BKGQJE9323

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 03, 2024
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE SPECIAL PURPOSE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF LAXMI DENTAL LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAXMI
DENTAL EXPORT PRIVATE LIMITED)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special Purpose Standalone
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has internal financial controls with reference to Special Purpose
Standalone Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Special Purpose Standalone
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Special Purpose Standalone
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Special Purpose Standalone
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

[ wer!
Nitin Tiwari
Partner
Membership No. 118894
UDIN: 24118894BKGQJE9323

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 03, 2024
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Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
‘Special purpose Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2013
(All gmounts are in INR miltion except per share dota or os otherwise stated)

As at
i 31 March 2023
ASSETS
| Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 78.11
Right of use assets L} 54.70
Investment property ? 9.69
Other Intangibie assets 8 .70
Financial assets
- Investments 9 140.34
- Other financial assets 10 16.20
Income tax assets (net) 11 3.40
Total Non-Current Assets (A} 510.14
1 Current Assets
Inventories 17 195.71
Financfal assets
~Trade receivables 13 291.18
-Cash and cash equivalents 14 574
-Other bank balances 15 6.22
~Loans. 16 5.45
-Other financial assets 17 21.87
Other current assets L] 40.53
Total Current Assets (8) 566.70
Total Assets (A+B) 1,076.84
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
| Equity
- Equity share capital 19 1.08
- Other equity 20 392.75
Total Equity (C) 400.83
1l Liabilities
Non-Current Liabllities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings Al 113.02
- Lease liabilities 2 33.00
- Other financial liabilities 13 9.54
Provisions 24 33.54
Total Nan-Current Liabilities (D) 189.10
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
-Borrowings 21 191.42
-Lease Liabilities. n 24.38
-Trade payables 5
f)Total g dues of micro 14.67
and small enterprises
#)Tatal autstanding dues of creditors other 168.06
than micro enterprises and small enlerprises
~Other financial liabilities 6 41,44
Other current liabilities 27 44.14
Shert term provisions 24 0.78
Total Current Liabilities (E) 486.91
Total Liabilities (D+E) 676.01
Total Equity and Liabilities (C+D+E) 1,076.84
Summary of material accounting policies 103

The accompanying notes (5-51) are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For M 5 KA & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Laxmi Dental Limited
(Formarly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Ll

Firm Registration Number: 105047W

5071

Nitin Tiwari Merchant

Partner

Membership No: 118894 DIN-00679893

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 03 September 2024 Dltew 024
'mesh Dattani

f Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 03 September 2024

PLCIATI

Mr. Rajesh Khakhar
Director
DIN-00679903

Place: Mumbai
Date: 03 September 2024

=

Company Secretary

ACS M.No.: A43768

Place: Mumbal

Date: 03 September 2024




Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)

Special purpose Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR miilion except per share data or as otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended 31 March 2023
I Income
Revenue from operations 28 1,257.71
Other Income 29 76.16
Total Income (1) 1,333.87
Il Expenses
Cost of material consumed 30 269.67
Purchase of stock-in-trace n 169.43
Change in inventories of finished goods n 1.40
Employee benefits expenses 33 496.89
Finance costs 14 37.47
Depreciation and amartization expenses 35 94.01
Other expenses 36 259.36
Total Expenses (1) 1,328.23
Il Profit before Exceptional items and tax (I-1l) 5.64
IV Profit before tax for the year (lll+IV) 5.64
¥V Tax Expense:
Current tax 7 -
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 37 0.03
Deferred tax 7 3
0.03
VI Share in Profit of Joint Venture 8.55
VIl Profit for the year (IV-V+VI) 14.16
Vil Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain/(loss) of net defined benefi 39 2.9
Income tax effect on above 39 "
IX Other comprehensive income for the year 2.9
X Total comprehensive Income for the year (Vi+Vill) 17.07
Xl Earmings Per tquity Share (Face Value of Ks, each)
Basic (INK) 18 0.27
Uiiutea (INK) 38 0.27
Summary of material accounting policies 1to3

The accompanying notes (5-51) are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 105047W

Nitin Tiwari
Partner
Membership No: 118894

Place: Mumbai
Date: 03 September 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Laxmi Dental Limited

(Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
'MH2004PLC147394 <

L
s

chant Mr. Rajesh Khakhar
Director
DIN-00679903

Place: Mumbai

Daw:ﬁmber 2024 Date: 03 September 2024

Place: Mumbai

D esh Dattani
ef Financial Officer

Nupur Joshi

Company Secretary

ACS M.No.; A43768

Place: Mumbai

Date: 03 September 2024

Place: Mumbal
Date: 03 September 2024




Laxm| Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Expart Private Limited)
Special Purpose standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 11 March 2023
(All amounts ore In INR milllon except per share data or as otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 March 2013

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 5.64
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses. 94.01
Allowances for expected credit losses 15.77)
Interest expense on borrowings w.n
Interest on Lease Liabilities 6.70
Share in Profit of LLP firm (Joint Venture) 8.5%
Interest Income: 0.88)
Interest income on Loans given Lo related parties (0.60)
Interest income on security deposits 10.76)
Prowision for diminution in value of investments 150
r Gain on termination of lease (0.10)
Unrealised exchange gain, net (13.67)
Operating Profit before working capital changes. 127.61
Waorking capital adjustments
“Increase in Trade receivables (48.98)
-Decrease (n Inventories .90
-Decrease in Dther non-current financial assets 2.8
-Decrease in Other current financial assets 18.04
“increase in other non-cwrrent and current assets (13.14)
-Decrease in Trade payables (17.65)
“Decrease in Other current liabilivies 17.30)
-Increase in non- current and current financial Habilities 127
-Increase in Provisions. 8.05
Cash generated from operations 99.68
Income tax paid (net) (0.43)
Net cash provided by operating activities (I} 99.25
Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (84.12)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 4.41
Purchase of Intangible Assets 16.45)
Proceeds from sale of Intangible Assets 0.49
Investment in Fixed Deposit (2.40)
Addition of investment in Associate 3.55)
Proceeds from repayment of loans 112
Proceeds from repayment of Loans from related party 1212
Interest received 125
Net cash used In Investing activities (1) (56.53)
Cash flow fram financing activities
Procesds from current borrowings 50.02
Proceeds from non-current bofrowings 35.45
Repayment of non-current borrowings (34.81)
i Payment of lease liabilities [22.59)
Finance cost paid (37.48)
Net cash used in financing activities (Iil) 19.21)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (Il +lil) E—— v
Cash and cash equivalents at the Beginning of the year e L
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1107.15)
Notes

11} The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method” as set out in the indian Accounting Standard (ind AS) 7 ° Cash Flow Statements™.

(1i} Break-up of Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

As at
31 March 2023
Cash in hand 0.30
Balances with banks
= in current accounts S.44
Bank overdraft (112.09)
(107.15)
(#1f) Change In Habilities artsing from financing activities
As at Asat
01 April 2022 St ot R ot Chit 31 March 2023
28894 [EEH] 0.7 306.44
Lease liabilites LIR 7 29.30) 4.76 57.38
Summary of material accounting policies 103
The accompanying notes (5-51) are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For M5 KA & Associates For and on bghalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limitet)
47394
% wen! ‘
-—
Nitin Trwarl Mr. Rajosh Khakhar
Partner Director
Membership No: 118894 DIN-00679903
Place: Mumbal Flace: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 03 September 2024 mu:w 024 Date: 01 September 2024
Dharjnesh Dattan| Hupur ﬁ
Chigf Financial Officer Campany Secretary
ACS M.No.: A4I768
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbat

Date: 03 September 2024 Date: 03 September 2024




Laxmi Dental Limited (Farmerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Special Purpose Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts are in INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital

Particulars No. of shares Amount

Equity shares of INR 10 each Issued, subscribed and fully

Balance as at 1 April 2022 3,07,914 1.08
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3,07,914 3.08
B Other Equity
Equity component of General Reserves Securities premium Retained Total
compulsory convertible earnings
preference shares
Balance as at 1 April 2022 116.24 17.00 521.88 (274.44) 380,68
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Profit for the year - - - 14.16 14.16
Other Comprehensive Incame for the year - - - 2.91 2.91
Balance as at 31 March 2023 116.24 17.00 521.88 (257.37) 197.75
Summary of material accounting policies 1tal

The accompanying notes (5-51) are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For M 5 K A & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants abdd g Laxmi Dental Limited

Firm Registration Number: 105047W g !-,’!'}';7 o (Formerly khown as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)

i

A

Nitin Tiwari Mr. Rajesh Khakhar
Partner Director
Membership No: 118894 DIN-00679893 DIN-00679903
Place: Mumbat S Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 03 September 2024 Date: 03 ember 2024 Date: 03 September 2024
e Nupsd
Dhgrmesh Dattani Nupur Joshi
ief Financial Officer Company Secretary
ACS M.No.: A43768
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 03 September 2024 Date: 03 September 2024
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Laxmi Dental Limited [Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Hates forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in INR million except per share dala or as otherwise stated)

1 Corparate Information

Laxmt Dental Limited (‘the Company') was incorporated as “Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited' as a private limited company under the Companies Act,
1956 pursuant to a certrficale of incorporation dated July 8, 2004, issued by the Assistant Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbai. Pursuant to &
spectal resolution passed in the extra-ordinary general meeting of Shareholders held on 18 June 2024, the name of our Company was changed Lo "Laxmi
Dental Private Limited’, and a fresh certificate of Incorporation was issued to the Company by the RoC on 24 July 2024, and the Company was converted
into a public limited company. Consequently, the name of the Company was further changed to ‘Laxmi Dental Limited', and a fresh certificate of
incarperation dated 02 August 2024, was issued by the RoC. The Company is engaged primarily in the business of running of dental laboratory and activities
related thereto.The registerec office of the Company is located at 103, Akrutl Arcade , Opposite A H Wadia high School, Near Azad Nagar Metro Station ,
Ancheri (West) , Mumbal -400053.

2 Material Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of Preparation
[0

Statement of compliance

The Special Purpose Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements of the Company comprises the Special Purpose Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Special
Purpose Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Special Purpose Statement of Changes in Equity, the Special Purpose
Statement of Cash Flows and Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 11 March 2023 and
summary of material accounting policles and explanatory notes (collectively referred as, the “Special Purpose Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements’)
that have been prepared by the management of the Company for the purpose of preparation of the restated financial information to be included in the
Draft Red Herring Praspectus (the *DRHP") to be filed by the Company wilh the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"), National Stock Exchange
of India Limited and BSE Limited in connection with the proposed initial Public Offer of equity shares {“IPO") by the Company.

The Special Purpase Financial Statements have been prepared by the management of the Company 1o comply with the requirements of:

(a) Section 26 of Part | of Chapter Il of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act™);

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2018, as amended (the “ICOR Regulations”);

{c) The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) tssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indfa (“ICAI"), as amended
(the“Guidance Note"); and

{d) Email dated 28 October 2021 from Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) to Association of Investment Bankers of India (“SEBI Communication®).

Pursuant to the Companies (Indian ) Second Rules, 2015, the Company voluntarily adopted 31 march 2024 as reporting date
far first time adoplion of ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013 (as amended from time to time), and consequently
1 April 2022 as the transition date for preparation of fts statutory Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024. Hence, the
Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, were the first general purpose fi prepared In d with Ind
AS. Upto for the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Company had prepared its general purpase financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 (“Indian GAAP" ar
“Previous GAAP") due 10 which the Special Purpose Ind AS Standalane financial statements are prepared as per SEBI Communvication. Further, these Special
Purpose Ind AS Standalone Financlal Statements are not the statutory Standalone financial statements of the Company under the Act.

The Special Purpese Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2013, has been prepared In accordance with the
recognition and measurement principles of Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') after making suitable adjustments to the accounting heads from their
Indian GAAP values following accounting policies and accounting policy cholces (both mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions availed as per ind AS
101) conststent with that used al the date of transition to Ind AS (1 April 2022) and as per the presentation, accounting policies and grouping/classifications
including revised Schedule Il disclosures followed as at and for the period ended 31 March 2024 pursuant to the SEBI Communication, Accordingly, these
Special Purpose Ind AS Standalone Financlal Statements for year ended 31 March 2021 are not the statutory Standalone financlal statements of the
Company and da not include all the discl to statutory financial stal ts prepared under the Companies Act, 2013,

These Special Purpose Ind AS Standalené FIRancial Stataments have been prepared solely for the purpase of preparation of Restated Consolidated Financial
Information for inclusion in ORHP in relation to proposed IPO. Hence this Special Purpose Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements are not suitable for any
other purpose other than for the purpose of preparation of Restated Financial information. Accordingly, no comparative figures are also presented in these
Standalone financial statements.

These Special Purpose IND AS Standalone Financial Statements of the Company as at and faor the year ended March 31, 2023, were approved by the Board of
Directors at their meeting held on 3rd September 2024.

(i) Basis of measurement
These Special purpose Ind AS Standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for the following
material items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:-
« Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financlal instruments)
- Net defined benefit obligation;

{ifl) Current versus nen-current classification
All assets and liablilities have baen ciassitied as current of non-current as per the Company's operating cycle and other critera set out in the Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2011, Based on the nature of products and services and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

(iv) Presentation currency and rounding off :
All amounts disclosed in Special Purpose Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements are reported In nearest millions of Indian Rupees and have been rounded
off to the nearest millions, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

(¥) Going concern
The Company has prepared the standalone financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

ivl) Use of Estimates

The of the Financial requires to make | and that affect the

of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

and ying are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisfons to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected,

—
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Critical accounting estimates:
a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in
depreciation expense in future periods.

b) Expected credit losses on trade recelvables

The impairment provision of trade receivables is based on assumptions about risk of default and expected timing of collection. The Company uses judgment
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs Lo the impairment calculation, based on the Company's past history, customer's creditwarthiness,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting peried,

¢} Defined benefit plans and compensated absences

The cost of the defined benefit plans, compensated absences and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the vaiuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

d) Leases
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requl of Ind AS 116. ion of a lease requires significant
Jjudgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term ls) and the discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periads cavered by an option to extend the lease if
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that aption; and periods covered by an option Lo terminate the lease if the Company s reasonably certain
not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an aption to extend a lease, or not to exercise an aption to
terminate a lease, It conziders all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend
the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-canceilasie period of a
lease.

The discount rate fs generally based on the incremental borrowing rate.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are dertved primarily from the sale of dental products and dental services. Revenue is measured as the amount of consideration the Company
expects [0 receive in exchange for transferring goods or providing services in accordance with Ind AS 115, Revenues from Contracts with Customers,
Revenue fs recognized when performance obligations are satisfied; this occurs with the transfer of control of products and services to its customers, which
for products generally occurs when Litle and risk of loss transfers to the customer, and for services generally occurs as the customer receives and consumes
the benefit.

Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

For the products pertaining to Dental Labaratory Offering and Alignars Solution, the Company transfers control and recognizes revenue when products are
shipped from the Company’s manufacturing facility or warehouse to the customer. For contracls with customers that contain destination shipping terms,
revenue is not recognized until the goods are delivered to the agreed upon destination. As such, the Company’s perfarmance obligations related to product
sales are satisfied at a point in time as this is when the customer obtains the use of and substantially all of the benefit of the product.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, odjum'nrrmmemﬂztmmlmnlesmm Reversal of revenue

0n account of sales returns is cs as variable ¢ . The variable i at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue r-:qnind will not oceur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable is resolved, revenue reduction Is recognised for expected sales returns using most |ikely amount method.
Contract Balances:

Controct Liability:

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount af
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company Lransfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment ts made or the payment s due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilitles are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract (l.¢., transfers control of the related goods or services Lo the

customer).

Trade Receivable:

A trade receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration Lhal is unconditional (i.¢., anly the passage of time (s required before payment of the
consideration is due).

Other operating income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognised when the performance obiigation i3
satisfied and the right (o receive the income fs established as per the terms of the contract.

Government grants are accounted when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them and where there
i3 & reasonable assurance that the grant will be received. The Company receives grants related to income and the same is recognised In the standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss as “olher operating income" (Revenue from operation).

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventaries comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs

incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the costs of and the costs ta make the sale,

Costs ncurred in bringing each product te its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials:

Cost includes purchase price, g those by the enterprise from the concerned revenue authorities), freight inwards and
other expenditure incurred in Mngtm such inventories to thefr present location and condition. Cost i3 determined on weighted average basis. Raw
Materials are valued al lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).

Finished Goods:

Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a rtion of ing based on the normal operating capacity. The same 15 valued
at lower of cost and NRV. Cost of Finished goods includes cost of raw materials, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories Lo
their present lacation and condition. Cost of inventories is computed on weighted average basis.

Traded goods:

Cost includes purchase price, thoss by the enterprise from the concerned revenue authorities), (reight inwards and
other expendture incurred in bringing such inventories to their present location and condition,

Provision for inventory:

Provision of g on Is on the basis of s estimate based on demand and mariet of the inventories.
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Property, Plant & Equipment
Recognition and Measurement :

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreclation and impairment, if any. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable
1o the acquisition of the asset. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as
intended by management.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate ftems (major components) of
property, plant and equipment. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future
economic benefits assoclated with these will flow ta the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset s derecognised when discarded/scrapped. All other repairs and maintenance
Costs are charged to profit and loss in the reporting period in which they occur,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or lass.

Depreciation:
Depreciation is provided, under the Written dawn value (WDV) basis, pro rata ta the period of use, based on useful lives specified In Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013.

The estimaled useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The range of m_M_M lives of the Property, Plant and Equipment are as follows:

Assets Useful economic life (in
Building 60
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office Equipments 5
Vehicle 8tot0
Computers. Jtob
Plant & machinery 13to15
Leases

The Company leases most of its office and warehouse facilities uncer operating lease agreements that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of
the lessar and the Lessee. The lease agreements contain rent escalation clauses.

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contracl. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right ta control the use of an identlilied asset for a period of Lime in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identitied asset, (ii) the company has the right to
‘obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease, and (i) the company has the right Lo direct the
use of the asset

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a ROU asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements under which
it fs a |essee, except for short-term leases and low value leases. ROU assets represent the Company’s right ta use an underlying asset for the lease term
and lease liabilities represent the Company's obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. The Company has elected not to apply the
requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is
of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight line basis aver the lease term.

The lease arrangements include optlons to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities include these
options when It is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior o
the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

ROU assets are depr from the date of of the lease on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the useful life of
the underlying asset

The lease liability Is initially measured at amortisad &t the present value of the future lease payments. The Company uses its Incremental borrowing rate
(as the interest rate implicit in the lease is not reacily determinable) based on the information available at the date of commencement of the lease In
determining the present value of lease payments. The lease liability fs sub by g the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease luability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. Lease [labilities are with a (73
the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment as to whether it will exercise an extension or 2 termination option,

Investment properties

Properties held to eam rentals are classified as investment property and are measured and reported al cost, including transaction costs, in accordance
‘with the Company's accounting policy. Policies with respect to depr , useful life and der are on the same bagis as stated in PPE above.
Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those Lo be measured subsequently at fair value through profit and loss, and

- thase measured at amortised cast

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics,
Initial recognition

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
«costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade are at price.

Measurement
Subsequent Lo initial recognition, flnancial assats are measured as described below:

Cash and cash equivalents:

The Company’s cash and cash cquivalents consist of cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks (three months or less from the date of
acquisition). For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and demand deposits with banks (three -
manths or less from the date of net of bank that are on demand and are considered part of the Company's

cash management system. In the balance sheet, bank overdrafts are presented under borrowings within current liabilities.
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Financial assets carried at amortised cost:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whase objective Is to hoid the asset in order to collect
contractual cash flaws and the contractual terms of the financlal asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

A financial asset {5 subsequently measured at fair value through ather comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise an specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, in cases where the Group has made an
frrevocable election based on its business model, for fts investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which does not meet the amortized cost or FYTOC! criteria is measured as FVTPL. Financial assets at FYTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses on r in of profit or loss. The gain or loss on disposal and
interest income earned on FYTPL is recognized.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a Company of financial assets is impaired. ind AS 109 requires expected
eredit losses to be measured through a loss allowance.

in determining the allowances for dountful trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance
for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward
looking Information. The expected credit loss allowance |s based an the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used (n the provision matrix. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For all ether financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses on a forward looking basis.
However, If the credit risk on the financial tnstruments has increased significantly since the initial recognition, then the Company measures lffetime ECL.

The amount of ECL (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain/loss under * Other
Expenses " in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

(v) Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when
- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under
IND AS 109,

- the Company retains contractual rights ta receive the cash flaws of the financial asset but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one
or more recipients.

‘When the entity has nefther trans‘erred a financial asset nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the fMnancial
asset i derecognised If the Company has not retained control af the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
to be to extent of in the financial asset.

(b) Financial labilities;

1) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost. All financial [fabilities are recognized initially at fair value, except in the case of
borrowings which are recognised at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, bank overdrafts, borrowings and lease liabilities,

{ff) Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

[ilf) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The Company also derecognises financial
Uabilities when their terms are modified and the cash flaws of the modified liabilities are substantially different, in which case new financial liabilities
based on the modified terms are recognized at fair value,

2.8 Employee benefits

(a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for salaries, wages and bonus, that are expected to be settied wholly within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render
the related service are recognised In respect of employees services up to the end of the reporting year and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when the liadilitles are settied. The liabilities are. as current emplayee benefit in the balance sheet.

{b) Compensated absences
The Company provides for the encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to
certain limits, for future encashment. The Liability is provided based on number of days of unutilized leave at each balance sheet date based on an
estimated basis for the period end and on an independent actuarial valuation under Projected Unit Cost method at the year end.

(<) Defined benefit plan
Employees are entitled to a defined benefit retirement plan (1.e. Gratuity) covering eligible emphyeﬂ of the Company. The plan pravides for a lump-sum
payment to eligible at death, and inc; or on of an amount based on the respective
employees salary and tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years ul service.

Gratuity liabilities are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each reporting date using the projected unit credit
method. The Company recognises the obligation of a defined benefit plan In its balance sheet as a Liability in accordance with IAS 19 - “Employee
Benefits.” The discount rate is based on the government securities yield Ie-rnu;urmnu. comprising actuarial gains and losses are recarded in ather
comprehensive income In the period in which they arise. Ri in other income is reflected immediately in retained
‘earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Palunﬂncunhmnmudhmsnm drmmmdl.u- in the period of plan amendment

Costs comprising service cast (including current and past service cost and gains and losses on curtallments and settiements) and net interest expense or

Income is recognised in prafit or loss.
-
/ /
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2.9 Provisions and expenses
A provision Is recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outfiow of
economic banefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Casts and expenses are recognised when incurred and have been classified according to their nature.

1.10 Income taxes
Income tax comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

a.  Current Tax
Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recavered from or paid ta the taxation authorities based
on the taxable profit far the perlod. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted by the reporting date and
applicable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and labllity simultancousty.

b. Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet and their tax bases.
Deferred tax labilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are for all [f
and Incurred tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductibie temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and Liabilities are not recognised If the temporary difference artses from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transactian that affects neither Lhe taxable profit nor the accounting profit,

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liabllity is settied or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets i reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

The Company recognises deferred Lax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences except those assotiated with the investments in subsidiaries where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future,

31 Recent accounting pronouncements:
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the
following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023, The company has applied these amendments for the special
purpose standalone financlal statement.

(a) (i} of Policles - toInd AS 1
The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their
'significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their “material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept
of materiality In making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in
the financial statements.

(1) New standards and amendments ssued but not effective
There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.

(b} Amendments to Ind AS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabllities arising from a Single Transaction
The amendments narrow the scope of the inftial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal
taxabie and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basks, As a result of these amendments, the Company has recognised a separate
deferred tax asset in relation Lo its lease liabilities and a deferred tax lability in relation to fts right-of -use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset
as per Lhe requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12,there is na impact in the balance sheet. There was also no impact on the apening retained eamings

as at 1 April 2022
() toindAS 8- of '
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in changes n policies and the correction of errors. It has also

been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and fnputs ta develop accounting estimates.

--This section is intentionally left blank 5
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4 First-Time Adeption Of ind As.

4.1 Ind AS optienal exemptions

‘Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian allows fi ime adopters certain P from the pective of
certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has accordingly applied the following exemptions:

(i) Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognized in the
financial statement as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per previous GAAP and used that as fts deemed cost as at the date of
transition after making necessary adjustment for decommissioning liabilities. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property,
plant and equipment at their previous GAAP carrying value as at transition date,

The Company has elected to measure intangible assets at the previous GAAP carrying ameunt as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS,
(il) Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the date of
transition to Ind AS.

(ifi) Leases
The Company has applied the madified retrospective approach in applying Ind AS 116,

4,2 Ind AS mandatory exceptions

(i) Classification and measurement of financial assets and Habilities
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets and liabilities on the basts of facts and circumstances existing as at the date
of transition. Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets and llabilities accounted at amortized cost based on facts and
circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application is impracticable. Accordingly, the Group has determined the classification
of financial assets and liabilities based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition. Measurement of financial assets and liabilities
accounted at amortized cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.

(i) Estimates
On assessment of the estimates made under the previous GAAP financial statements, the Group has concluded thal there is no necessity to revise the
' estimates under ind A5, as there is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates. However, estimates that were required under Ind AS but not
required under previous GAAP are made by the Group for the relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date. Key estimates
In pr of financial that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:

- Determination of the discounted value for financial Instruments carried are amortized cost.
- Determination of impairment allowance (ECL) on trade receivables.

(iff) Impairment of financial assets
At the date of transition to Ind AS, determining whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since the initial recognition of a financial
asset would require undue cost or effort, the Group has recognised a loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses at each
reporting date until that financial Instrument Is derecognised.

4.3 The ] provide a qui of the effect of transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS As Required Under Ind AS 101

(a) Reconciliation of total Equity as at 1 April 2022 and as at 31 March 2023
) of total income for the year ended 11 March 2023
(c) Impact of Ind AS adoption on the statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2013

(1)  Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2023

1Py As at
articulars Refer Mote 4.4 31 March 2023
Total equity {shareholder's funds) as per indian GAAP 471.76
nd AS Adfustments
Adjustment Lo revenue due to change in timing of revenue recognition {ind AS 115) ® 10.31)]
Adjustment on account of transition to Ind AS 116 (Leases) (i) (4.28);
d| on account of to Ind AS 109
- Impairment loss ({1 (23.14)
- Others (0.44)
Reversal of Amortisation of goodwill (iv)

. Adjustment to reverse the share of profit/loss in subsidiaries v 4.41
Impact on account of impairment of investment (29.42)
| Adjustments to rectify errors in previous GAAP (vi) (17.75))
Total equity (shareholder’s funds) as per Ind AS 400.83




Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxm| Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes farming part of the Speclal Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts are in INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

() Reconclliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars Refer Note 4.4 Amount
Profit After Tax As Per indian GAAP (3.22)
nd AS A nts
Adjustment to revenue due to change in timing of revenue recognition (Ind AS 115) (] 1.28
Adjustment on account of transition to Ind AS 116 (Leases) (i 14.28)
Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 109 .

- Impairment loss {iiff) 4.00

- Others (0.49))
Reversal of Amortisation of goodwill .00
Adjustment on account of of defined loyee benefit plans as per Ind AS 19 (iv) 12.91)
Adjustment to reverse the share of profit/loss in subsidiaries vy 3.06
Impact on account of Impairment of Investment 1(3.504
| Adjustments to rectify errors in previous GAAP (vi) 18.22
Total Adjustments 17.38
Profit After Tax As Per Ind AS 14.16
'Eh; Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement Loss of nel defined benefit plan (iv) N
Income tax effect on above (iv) -
Other Comp Income as per Ind AS 2.91
Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS 17.07

(iil) Impact of ind AS adoption on the of cash flows for the year ended 11 March 2023
Adjustment on
Particulars Previous GAAP | Transition to Ind Ind AS
AS

Net cash flow from operating activities 99.25 99.25
Net cash flow used In investing activities (56.53) (56.53)
Net cash fow used in financing activities (9.21)] (9.21)
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - 31.51 33,51
Cash and cash equivalents as at | April 2022 9.40 1150.06) 1140.66)|
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2021 11.96 (119.11)] (107.15)]

4.4 Notes To First-Time Adoption:

(1)  Revenue from contract with customer
Revenue from sale of goods fs recognized under IGAAP when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer,
i.¢., when the goods are delivered to the customer.
As per Ind AS. An entity shall recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service
(l.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the custamer obtains control of that asset.

(i) Impact of Leases due to adoption of Ind AS 116

Under Previous GAAP, a lease 15 classifled as a finance lease or an operating lease. g lease pay are as an expense
in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under Ind AS 116, a lessee applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets and recognises lease lfabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets, At the date of transition to Ind AS, the Company applied the
modified retrospective approach and measured lease liabilities at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
fncremental borrowing rate at the date of transition to Ind AS. Right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal to the lease liabilities.

(i) for d credit losses

} Under Previous GAAP, the Company has created provision for impairment of receivables based on the incurred loss model. Under Ind AS, impairment
loss has been determined as per Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The difference between the provision amount as per previous GAAP and Ind AS -
ECL is recognized in retained earings on date of and subs tly in the of profit and loss.

Under previous GAAP, Interest free lease security deposits are recorded at it's transaction wvalue. Under Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments”, all
financial assets are required to be initially recoqnized at fair vaiue. The Company has fair valued the security deposits under Ind AS at its initial

(tv)  Remeasurement gain/(loss) of net defined benefit plan

Under Previous GAAP the Campany recognised actuarial gaine and losses In the Statement of Prafit and Loss. Under Ind AS, all actuarial gains and
losses are recognised In the other comprehensive income. Further to the above, the deferred tax impact on above transaction has also been
regrouped from Statement of Profit and Loss to other comprehensive income as per guidance under Ind AS 12 ‘Income laxes',

(v)  Share of profit/loss in subsidiarfes
Earlier Company was following the practice of recognising share of profit/loss from LLP(Subsidiary) In Previous GAAP. However as per (nd AS 17 share

of profit /loss from LLP(S ) will not in the dal financial of Parent company, therfore the share of profit/loss taken in
Financial statements s reversed,

(vl)  Adjustments to rectify errors In previous GAAP
The Company has made certain errors fn the adoption on accounting policies, measurement of depreciation, allocation of overhead cost,
Impai of goodwill, benifit . During the current year, on transition to Ind AS, the Company has rectified these errors by
restating the transition date balance sheet as at April 1,2022.
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Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standal Financial for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

6 Right of use Assets

Business premises Total

Gross block

As at 1 April 2022 84.36 84.36

Additions during the year 0.79 0.79

Disposals/ Adjustments (3.19) 3.19%)

Balance as at 31 March 2023 81.96 81.96

Accumulated Amortisation

As at 1 April 2022

Amortisation charge for the year 27.74 27.74

Disposals/ Adjustments (0.48) (0.48)

Balance as at 31 March 2023 27.26 27.26

Net block

Balance as at 31 March 2023 54.70 54.70
7 Investment Property

Gross block

Deemed Cost at 1 April 2022* 10.11 10.11

Additions during the year "

Disposals/ Adjustments - .

Balance as at 31 March 2023 10.11 10.11

Accumulated Depreciation

Depreciation charge for the year 0.42 0.42

Disposals/Adjustments v .

Balance as at 31 March 2023 0.42 0.42

Net biock

Balance as at 31 March 2023 9.69 9.69

* The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Investment property recognised as of April 1, 2022
(transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the transition
date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101 'First -time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards'.

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment properties

As at
Particulars 31 March 2023
Rental income derived from investment properties
Direct operating expenses (including repairs
and maintenance) generating rental income
Direct operating expenses (including repairs
and maintenance) that did not generate rental
income
Profit arising from investment properties
before depreciation and indirect expenses

3 ~
& .

6.88
Less - Depreciation (0.42)
Profit arising from investment properties
before indirect expenses 6.46
Less - Indirect expenses -
Profit from investment properties 6,46

7.1 The Entity’s-investment properties consist of commercial properties in India given on lease for a period of 1-5 years.

7.2 The Entity has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase,
construct or develop investment praperties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.




Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial § for the year ended 31 March 2023
(ALl amounts are in INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

8 Other Intangible Assets

Other Intangible Asset
Software Total

“Gross block

Deemed Cost at 1 April 2022° 2.67 2.67

Additions during the year £.45 6.45

Disposals/ Adjustments (0.49) (0.49)
, Balance as at 31 March 2023 8.63 8.63

Accumulated Amortisation

Amortisation charge for the year 0.93 0.93

Disposals/ Adjustments (0.00) (0.00)

Balance as at 31 March 2023 0.93 0.93

Net block

Balance as at 31 March 2023 7.70 7.70

* The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Intangible Assets recognised as of
April 1, 2022 (transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its
deemed cost as on the transition date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101 ‘First -time Adoption of Indian =
Accounting Standards’. (Refer Note 4) ——

This section is intentionally left blank




Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standal Fi {al Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

9 Investments

As at 31 March 2023

Unquoted, carried at cost less impairment
Investment in Subsidiaries:
Unauoted Equi hai
20,10,000 equity shares of Bizdent Devices Pvt. Ltd. Shares( Face value INR 10

each) 18
' 10,000 equity shares of Laxmi Dental Lab USA, INC. Shares { 5100 each) 64,82
1,60,000 equity shares of Signature Smiles Dental Clinic Pvt. Ltd. Shares { Face
value INR 10 each) 70.00
Limited Liability Partnership Firms

Rich Smile Design LLP 0.07

Techlab Consulting LLP 0.05
Total 140.04
Investment In Associates:

67,217 equity shares of ECG Plus Technologies Private Limited ( Face value INR 10

each) n4

Less: Provision for Impairment (29.42)
Total 5
Investment In Joint Venture:

Kids-e-Dental LLP 0.30
Total 0.30
Total 140.34

d . o,
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Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standal Financial for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

10  Other financial assets

As at
131 March 2023
Security deposits 1:.:{:
Loan to employees 1.”
Fixed deposit # .
Total 16.20
# The fixed deposit has been placed against the bank guarantee given to excise department.
11 Income tax assets (net)
As at
31 March 2023
Tax deducted at saurce 3.40
Total 3.40

12 Inventories

As at
31 March 2023
Finished goods (At lower of cost and net realizable value} 15.55
Finished goods in transit (At lower of cost and net realizable value) 1.67
Raw material (At cost) 134.24
Semi finished goods (At cost) 12.65
Stock in Trade (At lower of cost and net realizable value) 27.02
Store and spares parts including packing material (At cost) 4.58
Total 195.71
—_—
Note
Refer note 46(vii) for quarterly reconciliation of inventory
13 Trade Receivables
As at

31 March 2023

Unsecured - Considered Good

Trade Receivables 321.56
Less.: Allowances for expected credit losses ("ECL") sn,)a!
Total 291.18

Outstanding from the due date of payment

As at 31 March 2023 Lessthan 6 6 months-1
Not due months et 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade receivables -
97.08 116.71 64.32 42.06 1.67 1.72 323.56

considered good
Undisputed trade receivables - m
which have significant increase in

credit risk

Undisputed trade receivables - *
credit impaired =
Disputed trade receivables - - - . # 3 E:

considered good )
Disputed trade receivables - - . . = "
which have significant increase in

credit risk

Disputed trade receivables - - - . 5 2 =
credit impaired -
Less: Impairment allowance (32.38)
Total 97.08 116.71 64,32 42.06 1.67 1.72 291.18

13.1 Movement in Expected Credit Loss during the year.

As at
‘ 31 March 2023
Opaning Balance(A) 38.15
Changes in loss allowance:
Loss allowance based on Expected credit loss (5.77)
Clesing Balance(B) 32.38
14 Cash and cash equivalents
As at
31 march 2023
Cash in hand 0.30
Balances with banks l
- in Current accounts 5.44

Total 5.74
_—




Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standal Financial for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

15  Other bank balances

As at
31 March 2023
Deposits with Banks
With original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 6.2
Total 6.22
16  Loans (Current)
T As at
31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good:
Loans to related parties (refer note 41) 4,24
Other loans
Unsecured considered good 1.21
Total 5.45
17 Other financial assets
As at
31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits 4.99
Other Receivables (Refer note 41) 16.88
Totkt 21.87

18  Other Current Assets

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Prepaid expenses 9.66
Advance to related party (Refer note 41) 0.29
Advance to staff 0.14
Advance to suppliers 13.91
Balance with gavernment authorities 16.42
Export incentive 0.11
Total 40.53

wessmsssesessessssnenase===This section is intentionally left blank- emm e
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Notes farming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount in millions , except number of shares data}
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]

(iv)

v

i)

®)
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EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized Share Capital
Equity Share Capital
As at
31 March 2023
Authorized share capital
24,460,000 Equity shares of INR 10/- each 24.60
Total 14.60
Preference shares
As at
11 March 2023
wthdri
3,00,000 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of INR 400/ - each 120.00
Total 120.00
Total Autherized share capital 144.80

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital
ity Sh.

1,07,914 Equity Shares of INR 10/- sach 1.08

Tatal 1.08
component of ¢ lail f ar

290,557 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of INR 400/- each 116.24

Total 116.24

Total Issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital 119.32

Equity Shares

Reconcillation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31 March 2023

HNumber of shares Amaunt
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,07,914 3.08
Add: Issued during the year - £
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,07,914 3.08

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the squity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder Is entitled to one vote per share held. The company declares and pays dividends in
Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the year ended 31st March 2023, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity sharehalders was Nil.

In the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Detalls of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate equity shares in the Company

Name of sharehalder As at 31 March 2023

HNumber of shares % of holding
Mr. Rajesh Khakhar 1,05.457 34.25%
Mr. Sameer Merchant 1,01,197 12.84%
Ms. Jigna Khakhar 52,020 16.89%
Total 2,58,594 83.98%

Note:

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding
represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

The Company has nat lssued any bonus shares or shares for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

The Company has nat bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the current year end.

Detalls of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

As at 31 March 20213

Number of shares % of holding . Chlu;::nng e
Mr, Rajesh Khakhar 1,05,457 34.25% 0.00%
Mr. Sameer Merchant 1,01,117 32.84% 52.15%

2,086,574 67.09% 52.15%
Preference shares
of shares g at the b g and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 1023
Humber of shares Amount

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 7,90,597 116.24
Add: Issued during the year . =
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,90,597 116.24

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the preference shares:
Each shareholder is eligible to vote in the ratio of their shareholding. The holders of CCPS shall be entitled to vote on all such matters which affect their rights directly or indirectly.




Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amaunt in millians , except number of shares data)
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The Investor Shares shall rank senior to the preference shares and other instruments that are outstanding and which may be fssued by the Company from time to time in all respects
including but nat limited ta voting rights, dividends and liquidation/ liquidity preference and bonus issuances. The holders of Series A CCPS shall be entitled to all superior rights or ather
rights that may be given to any ather investar, if any, in the fulure.

The Series A CCPS shall carry a pre-determined cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% (zero point zero Zero zero one per Cent) per annum. In addition to the same, if the holders of Equity
Shares are paid dividend In excess of 0.0001% (zero point Zero Zero Zero one per cent) per annum, the halders of the Series A CCPS shall be entitled to dividend at such higher rate.

The holder of the Series A CCPS shall have the rignt to be first paid, in priority to the ather Shareholders and all other classes of preference shareholders, any declared but accrued and
unpaid dividends.

The holders of Investor CCPS shall, at any time prior to 19 (nineteen) years from the date of Issuance of the same, be entitled to call upon the Company to convert all or any of the Investor
CCPS and if not converted earlier, shall automatically convert into Equity Shares at the fixed conversion rate (1:0.9147), (i) on latest permissible date prior to the issue of Shares to the
public in connection with the occurrence of a Public Offer under Applicable Law, or (i1) on the day following the completion of 19 (nineteen) years from the date of issuance of the same.

) Details of equity shares held by sharehalders holding maore than 5% of the aggregate equity shares in the Company
As at 31 March 2021

Name of sharehalder

Number of shares % of holding
Preference shares of INR 400 each fully pald up
Orbimed Asta Il Mauritius Investments Limited 2,90,597 100.00%
Total 2,90,597 100.00%
Note:
As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial Interest, the above sharcholding
represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.
Other Equity

As at
= = 31 March 2023

Equity of ¥ ce shares 116.24
General reserve 17.00
Securities premium 52{“
Retained earnings [157:37]
Total Other Equity “397.75

(A) General reserve - There was no movement in general reserves.

General Reserve represents accumulated profits and is created by transfer of profits from Retained Earnings and It is not an item of Other Comprehensive Income and the same shall not be
lassifled to Stat t of Profit and Loss.

Securities premium - There was no movement in securities premium. Securities premium is used to record the premi
;3 premium on issue of shares, Security premium record
shares Lo be utilized in accordance with Companies Act 2013, A "

Retained earnings

As at
Balance at the beginning of the year 31 March 1?117’1 -
Add : Profit for the year .44)
Add : Other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained eamings |;-;:
Balance at the end of the year T -’7}

msssmessessssssee-s-----------This section is intentionally left blank-----




Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose d. Financial § for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in INR milifon except per share data or as otherwise stated)

22 Leases- IND AS 116

The Company has lease contracts for office premises, factories and h used in its operations. Lease terms generally
ranges between 1 and 5 years.

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

A Lease liabilities
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the year:
As at
Raticulars 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 81.92
Additians 0.77
Principal payment of lease liabilities (22.59)
Interest payment on lease liabilities (6.70)
Accretion of interest 6.70
Disposals/ Adjustments. (2.72)
Balance at the end of the year 57.38
p The following is the break-up of Lease Liability as at reporting date:
As at
31 March 2023
Current 24.38
Non-current 33.00
Total 57.38
C The Undiscounted lease [{abilities of continuing operations by maturity are as follows
As at
31 march 2023
Less than one year 28.72
Between one to five years 35.00
After five years -
Total 63.81

D Lease Expenses recognised in statement of Profit and Loss not included in the measurement of lease liabilities :

' As at
31 March 2023
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 9.57
Total 9.57

------==-This section is intentionally left blank




Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxm| Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All emounts ore in INR mlilion except per share data ar os otherwise stated)

11 Borrowings
As at
31 March 2023
(A} Non-Current Borrowing
{1} Secured
(i) Term ioans
77,57
Total
(Il) Unsecured
(1) Term loans
Frora Banks ::’;
(#) From Related Parties __—’?’T’.
Total -
Total (A) 111.02
(B) Currant Borrowing
(1) Secured
(1) Overdraft B Cash Credtt e
(1) Term loans
Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 21.1) »»
(1) Working capital demand loans ____'_Amo_
Total of Current Borrowing 192.68
(1) Unsecured
(1) Term (oans
- Current maturities of (ong term borrowings (refer note 21.1) 8.74
Total of Current Borrowing 0.74
Total (8) 193,41
o () S
Motes:
21,1 Current maturities of long term borrewings
As at
31 March 2023
Secured
{A) Term Loan
- From Banks 19.7%
Total of Secured Term Loans (A) 39.79
Unsecured
(A) Term Loan
- FromBanks I S . ]
Total of Unsecured Term Loans (B) 0.74
Total (A+B) 40,53
——
2.2 schedule for loan
[Rame of Lender Tyoe Note Term of Repayment Rate of Interest At at
pa 31 March 2023
Indusind Bank - Term Loan Secured Refer Note 24 monthly Instalment of 0.87 milllons each from 10.75% 2394
07 November 2016 to 07 October 2018, 85
21.3 afi) to a (ix) manthly fnstalment (Including & months
|marotorium peried from 07 March 2020 to €7
August 2020) of 0.84 million each from 07
|Movember 2018 to 07 November 2025 and 1
|tnstalment of 0.54 millions on 07 December 2025.
Indusind Bank - Term Loan Secured 207 Monthly instalment of 0.24 millions each from| Spread rate 4% .59
07 November 202! to 07 Novernber 2038 and 1 .
instalment of 0.05 an 07 December 2028. Repo rate 4.75%
indusind Bank - Tarm Loan Secured 11 monthly instalment of 0.06 millions each from | Spread rate 1% T.10
07 Novernbier 2021 to 07 September 2012 and 36 .
monthly instalment of 0.26 millions each from 07 | * EBLR 7.75%
October 2027 ta 07 September 2025
ICICI Bank Limited(Vehicle Loan) Secured 50 Monthly instalment of 0.03 millions sach from 760K 1.01
01 November 2021 to 01 October 2026,
ICICI Bank Limited(Vehicle Loan) Secured 3 , 61 Manthly 9.00% 3.10
of 0.12 millions each from 15 March 2020 t0 15
June 2025 and 1 instalment of 0.09 million on 15
July 2025.
ICICI Bank [Imited{Vehicle loan} Secured 60 monthly instalment of 0.03 miltions each from B.15% 11
07 May 2022 to 07 April 2027.
ICICI Bank - Term Loan Secured &0 Monthly Instalment of 0,70 millions each from |Spread rate 1.6%| 15.46
10 September 2019 to 30 August 2024. .
" MCLR 3.55%
Standard Chartered Term Loan Secured 180 Monthly instalment of 0.15 millions each from|  Spread rate 15.46
10 May 2022 to 10 April 2037, 3.28%
ICICI Yenadent LC - Term Loan Secured 20 Quarterty fnstalment of 0.57 millions from 31 15% - 6% 6.18
March 2021 to }1 December 2025.




Laxmi Dental Limfted (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Motes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts ore in INR million except per share dato ar o3 otherwise stated)

Type Mote Term of Repayment Rate of Interest As at
[Name of Lender =~ e
TCIC! Bank (imited(Emergency Credit Line guarantee scheme] Secured Refar Note 21.3 (5}(1] |48 Monthly Instalment of 1.26 millions cach from | Spread rate [N
30 September 2021 to 30 August 2025. 0.55%
ICICI bank limited(Working capital demand loan) Secured Refer Note Loan repayble on demand Spread rate 4% 40.00
11.4 a(i) Repa rate 6.50% ]
ICICI bank limited - Cash credit facility Secured Refer Note 21.4 e (i) |Loan repayble on demand Spread rate 4% 112.89
.
Repo rate 6.50%
IDFC First Bank - Term Loan Unsecured Refer Note 21.3 ¢ 18 Manthly instalment of 0.26 millions each from 16.00% 0.74
02 January 2072 to 02 June 2023,
55
Amrish Desal Unsecured Refer Note 21.4 (i)  |Loan repayble on demand 10.50% 1.75
Rajesh Khakhar Unsecured Loan repayble on demand 10.50%
Hasmukh Khakhar Unsecured Loan repayble on demand 10.50%
Sameer Merchant Unsecured Loan repayble on demand 10.50%
Total

21.3 Non-current Borrowings

& Secured Term Loans

(1) Car loan from bank as on 31 March 2023 amounting to INR 1.01 millions was taken Vehicle Laan from ICICI bank Limited. The (oan 13 secured Dy Mypothecation af thé said vehicle.
(i) Car loan from bank as an 31 March 2023 amounting to INR 3.10 millions was taken Vehicle Loan from ICICI bank [imited. The loan is secured by hypothecation of the said vehicle.
(i) Car lpan from bank as on 31 March 2021 amounting to INR 1.13 millions was taken Vehicle Loan from ICICI bank limited The loan Is secured by hypothecation of the said vehicle.
{iv)  Term Loan from bank as on 31 March 2013 amounting to INR 15.46 miilions was taxen from ICICI bank which 15 seCUrec against the following:
“Survey No 18 , (E) . Thane » India 401107
“Current Assets of Company \l‘ﬂh the Personal Guarantee of 1) Jigna Khakhar, 2) Rajesh Khakhar, 1) Sameer Merchant
(v) Term Loan from bank as on 31 March 2023 amounting to INR &.18 millions was taken from ICIC| bank which is secured against the following:
- Gala No 105/106/107 Shreyas incustrial Estate, off link road, Ancher! West, Mumbal - 400053
-410/411, 4th floor , Akruti arcade , Opp A H Wadia School , Mumbai Maharashtra , India , 400053
-601-609 , bth floar , Akruti arcade , Opp A H Wadia School , Mumbal, Maharashtra , [ndia 400053
“Survey No 18, y (E), Thane . India 401107
~Current Assets of Company vmh the Persanal Guarantee of |).h|,ru Knakhar, 1) Rajest Khakhar, 3) Sameer Merchant
~Coorporate Guarantee of ASY Properties LLP

I¥i) Term Loan from bank as on 11 March 2023 amounting to 15.45 millions was taken from standard chartered bank against the security of property of Director situated at Flat No 88, Tarapore garden CHSL, Off
New Link Road, Oshiwara, Andheri West Mumbal - 400053,

[vfl) Term loan frem bank as on 31 March 2023 amounting to INR 21.94 millions was taken from Induilnd bank limited which is secured against the property of the Company situated at office no 103 on 1st floor,
Wing C in the bullding known as Akruti Arcade C.H.S, limited. Andheri{west], Mumbai-400051.
{vill) Term loan from bank as on 31 March 2023 amounting to INR 22.59 milllons was taken from Indusing bank limited which Is secured against the property of the Company situated at office ng 103 on 1st floor,
Wing C in the building known as Akruti Arcade C.H.5. (imitad, Andheri (west), Mumbai-400053.
(ix) Term loan from bank as on 31 March 2023 amounting to INR 7.10 millions was taken from indusing bank limited which is secured against the property of the Company situated at office no 103 on 1st floor, Wing
C in the bulding knawn as Akruti Arcade C.H.S. limited, Andheri{west), 3.
b. Secured Emergency credit line (ECL)
(1] * ECLGS Term Loan as on 31 March 2023 INR 21.39 millions was taken from (CICI Bank Limited which is secured against the existing securities created in favour of ICICI bank limited.

¢ Unsecured Term Loans
(i1 Term Loan from bank as on 31 March 2023 amaunting to INR 0.74 million taken from IDFC first Bank .

11.4 Current Borrowings

d.  Working Capital demand loan (Secured)
(1) Working capital demand loan fram bank on 31 March 2021 amounting to 40 millions was taken from ICICI bank limited which is secured against the following:
-Gala No 105/106/107 Shreyas Industrial Estate, off link road, Andheri West, Mumbai - 400053
~410/411 , 4th floor , Akruti arcade , Opp A H Wadia School , Mumbai Maharashtra , India , 400053
~401-609 , 6th Moor , Akruti arcace , Opp A H Wadia School , Mumbal, Maharashtra , india ,400053
~Survey No 18, (€}, Thane + India 401107
-Current Assets of r.unpmymm the Personal Guarantee sﬂ)Jlm Khakhar, 1) Rajesh Khaknhar, 3) Sameer Merchant
-Coorporate Guarantee of ASY Properties LLP

e Cash Credit facility (Secured)
11 Cash Credit from bank as on 31 March 2023 amounting to INR 112,87 millions was taken from [CIC| bank limited which Is secured against the following:
+Gala No 105/106/107 Shreyas Industrial Estate, off link road, Andheri West, Mumbal - 400051
4107411, dth floor , Akrut! arcade , Opp A H Wadia School , Mumbal ,Maharashtra , India , 400053
~601-609 , &th floor , Akruti arcade , Opp A H Wadia School , Mumbai, Maharashtra , India 400053
~Survey No 18 , : (E) . Thane , India 401107
-Current Assets of Company with the Persanal Guarantee of 1) Jigna Khakhar, 2) Rajesh Khakhar, 3) Sameer Merchant
-Corporate Guarantee of ASY Properties LLP

. Unsecured loan from related parties
(1) Loan from director as on 31 March 2021 amaounting :
-Amrish Desal INR 1.75 millions
~Rajesh Khakhar INR 25,70 millians ~
-Hasmukh Khakhar INR 8.00 miliions |
-Sameer Merchant INR 2.00 miltions
h

* PCFC :Pre - Shipment Credit in Foreign Currency ’\-
ECLGS : Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme {
NACH : National Autemated Clearing House
UDC : Undated Cheque -
EBLR : External Benchmark Lending Rate
MCLR : Marginal Cast of Funds Based Lending Rate
BLR : Base Lending Rate

** Range Is at decreasing rate as per ranction letter.
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M4

M
o

3.4

6

Other financial llabilities

As at
31 March 2021
9.54
Security Deposits
9.54
Total
Provistons.
As at
31 March 2023
Noa-Current
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 19) _—

~ Gratuity 4'“]
- Compensated absences ¥
Tatal (A} 13.54
Current
Pravision for emplayee benefits (Refer note 39)

- Compensated absences 0.78
Total (8) 0.78
Tatal (A+B} 3432
Trade Payables

As at
31 March 2021
Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises. 14.67
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises 188.06
182.73

The information required to be disclosed under the Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (herein after referred to as "MSMED Act, 2006°) has been determined to the extent
such parties have been on the basis of avallable with the Company. The same has been relied upon by the auditors. The amaunt of principal and interest outstanding during the

year is given below :

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

- Interest due on above
b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounits of the payment made ta the supplier beyond the appointed
| day during each accounting year
<) The afnount of Interest due and payabie for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006
d) The amount of interest accrued and remalning unpaid at the end of each accounting year;
) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as abave are actually paid 1o the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductinle expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

0.33

K

Ageing schedule of trade payables

Ageing schedule as at 11 March 2023 tstanding for following year from the date of payment
Unbilled Dues Not due Less than a year

1-1 years -3 years Maore than 3 Total
years
(1] Undisputed -MSME - - 14.31 0.36 . - 14.67
(] Uncisputed -Others B8.04 - 131.24 L2 12.32 14.25 148,06
(i) Disputed dues- MSME g 2 g p A ¢ i
(iv] Disputed dues- Others . . . . . . -
Total 8.04 - 145.55 1.57 13.31 14.25 182.71
Other Current Financial Liabilities
As at
31 March 2023
Interest accrued but not due on bormowings. 0.34
Emplayee benetit payable K
Total —
41.46
Other current liabilities G
As at
Contract liabilities (advance billing) L aren 2023
Statutory dues payable os
Total —d
. 44,14




Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxm{ Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
(4l emounts are in INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

28 Revenue from operations

For the year ended
31 march 2023
Revenue from contract with customers: 1,239.26
- Sale of goods
m.hor operating revenue
Government Grant: 1.58
Export incentive 0.48
Duty drawback 16.19
Miscellaneous income T257.71
Total
A Information of disaggregated revenue as per Ind AS 115
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:
For the year ended
31 March 2023
{A) Based on Geographical markets i
. :;h 347.29
. 1,219.26
Total
A Disaggregation of revenue
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by Product type.
For the year ended
Segments 31 March 2023
-Lab Business 1,?;: ::
-Aligners -
1,239.26
B about major
Ho single customer has accounted for more than 10% of the Company's revenue for the year ended 11 March 2023,
€ Contract Balances
'
The following table provides information about receivables and contract labilities from contracts with customers, There are no contract assets,
As at
31 March 2023
Trade Receivables (Refer note 13) 291.18
Contract Liabiliies
-Payments In advance of Goods (Refer note 27) 19.69
-Advance billings (Refer note 27) 16.74
] of revenue ised vis-a-vis contracted price
For the year ended
31 March 2023
Revenue as per contracted price 1,219.26
Revenue from contract with customers —anan
E The revenue to be in the future relating to g per as at 31 March 2023 Is as follows:
AVal 31 March 2013
Less than 1 year 1-3 years More than § years Total
Transaction price allocated to remaining perfarmance obligations 31.87 456 - 36.43

29 Other Income

For the year ended

31 March 2023
'
Interest income on fixed depasits 0.28
Interest income from other parties 0.28
Interest income from related parties (Refer note 41) 0.60
Interest income on security deposits 0.76
Interest income on income tax refund 0.10
Reimbursement of expenses from group Companies (Refer nate 41) 52.89
Rent income from Investment properties (Refer note 7) 7.33
Gain on termination of lease 0.t0
Foreign exchange gain 13.67
Miscellaneous other income 0:1!
Total 76.16
[N 2 ~




Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Expart Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in INR million except per share data or os otherwise stated)

30 Cost of material consumed

For the year ended
31 March 2023
Rewe materfals at the beginning of the year 166.32
Add: Purchases (net) 242.56
Less: Inventories written off * 10.39)
Less: Raw materials at the end of the year (138.82)
269.67

Total

Company Is engaged In manufacturing of dental product like teeth , aligner etc. In case of return of product by the customer due to misfit or any other reason , product is disposed
off and therefore Inventery related to that product is alsa written off_

Purchase of stock-in-trade

w

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Purchase of traded goods#
Total

169.43

#Purchase Include custom duty of INR 25.83 Million

-
~

Change in inventories of finished goods

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Opening stock 58.29
Closing stock 56.8%
Net increase 1.40

Closing stock Includes stock In transit amounting to INR 1,67 Million
33 Employee benefits expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2023
Salaries, Wages & Bonus
Staff welfare expense ‘;:::
Gratuity expense (Refer note 39) -d
Contribution to provident and other funds 1:{1;
Total ;
496.89
34 Finance Cost
For the year ended

31 March 2023

Interest Expense on Borrowings (rom banks

Interest Expense an Borrowings from related parties (Refer note 41) "z
Interest on Lease Liabilities i
Total LD

37.47

k]

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

For the year ended

31 March 2023
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer note 5)
Deprecfation on Investment property (Refer nate 7) s
Amartization on Right of Use Assets (Refer nate 6) s
27.74

Amartisation on Intangible Assets (Refer nate 8]
Total —
—
94.01




Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in INR million except per share data or as atherwise stated)

36.1

Other Expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2023
. o
Clearing and Forwarding charges 26.90
Bank charges .9
Office expenses 1.32
Packing material charges 0.24
Audit Fees 0.45
Business promation & Advertisement a2
Rent Expense 9.57
Power and fuel 9.9
Telephone expenses l40
Software Expenses 174
Legal and professional charges 49.52
Travel and conveyance 3.6
Insurance expenses 1.56
Repair & maintenance Charges 11.26
Commissian expense 189
Printing & stationary 4,49
Courfer charges 17.80
Inventory written off Q.39
Housekeeping Expense 437
Rates and taxes 4.9
Recruitment charges. 1.98
Impairment loss on Investment 3.50
Security charges n
Internet charges 2.06
Impairment (gain)/loss (ECL) (5.77)
Miscellenous expense .79
Total 25936
Payment to Auditors
For the year ended
31 March 1023
As Auditor
Statutory Audit 0.40
In Other Capacity
Tax Audit 0.05
Total T

This section is intentionally left blank--




Laxmi Dental Limited (Farmerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

37 Tax Expense

{A) Income tax expense;

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Current tax o
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 0.03
Deferred tax .
Income tax expense reported in the statement af profit or loss e

(B) Income tax expense charged to Other Comprehensive income (OCI)
For the year ended
31 March 2023
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liabflity
Income tax charged to 0C| -
(C) Reconciliation of tax charge
For the year ended
31 March 2023
Profit befare tax 5.64
Enacted incame tax rate applicable to the Company 27.82%
Current tax expenses/(Credit) on profit/(loss) before tax at the enacted income tax rate 1.57
Losses on which deferred taxes not recognised (0,78)
" Previous year tax adjustment 0.03
Others (0.79)
Income tax expense 0.03
(D) As at the year ended on 31 March 2023 the Company is having net deferred tax assets comprising of brought forward losses and unabsorbed

depreciation under tax laws. However in the absence of reasonable certainty as to its realization of Deferred Tax Assets (DTA), DTA has not been
created. The unused tax losses expire upto B years and may not be used to offset taxable income of the Company.

As at
31 March 2023

Brought forward losses 10.26
Unabsorbed depreciation 61,85
7211
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Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

38 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic/Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/lass for the year attributable to equity
holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

' For the year ended 31

March 2023
Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders of the Company {in INR) 14,16
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 571,719
Effect of dilution;
Add: Split of shares subsequent to period end considered for calculation of earnings per share 22,94,876
for current year (Note 1)
Add: Bonus shares issued subsequent to period end considered for calculation of earnings per 4,87,66,115
share for current years (Note 2)
Weighted Average Number of equity shares at the end of the year (Note 3) 5,16,34,710
Basic earning per share (INR) 0.27
Diluted earning per share {INR} 0.27

Note

1 Subsequent to 31 March 2024, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 4 June 2024 approved the sub-division
of each equity share of face value of INR 10 each fully paid up into face value of INR 2 each fully paid up,

Further, the Board of Directors have alsa approved the issue of bonus equity shares in its meeting held on 4 June 2024
in the ratio of 1 equity shares of INR 2 each for every 17 equity share of INR 2 each by capitalization of such sum
standing to the credit of free reserves of the Company

3 Weighted average number of equity shares includes 2,90,597 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
coveritible in the ratio of 1:0.915 .i.e 2,65,805 equity shares. Each CCPS is a compulsorily and fully convertible
preference share, convertible into Equity Shares, as per the terms and conditions as laid out in agreement with CCPS
holder. Therefore, CCPS were classified in accordance with Ind AS 32 as equity.

»~
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Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standal Financial for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

19
U]

i
(A)

a)

b)

Employee Benefits Obligations

Defined contributions plans -Provident fund and others

The Company makes contribution towards employees' Provident Fund and other defined contribution plans. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll cost, as specified in the rules of the schemes, to these defined contribution schemes.

During the year the Company has recognized the f "] in the of profit and loss:
N For the year ended
P /t
artintany 31 March 2023
Provident Fund (Incl. admin charges) 14.47
Labour Welfare Fund 0.08
Total 14,55

Defined Benefit plans
Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity benefit under a defined benefit retirement scheme (the “Gratuity Scheme”) as laid out by the Payment of Gratuity (Amendment) Act, 2018
of India cavering eligible empl i.e. an employee wha has p five years of service is entitled to specific benefits, The level of benefits provided depends on the
member's length of service and salary at retirement age.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Scheme are determined by actuarial valuation carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method by an independent actuary.

The scheme is partially funded with an insurance Company in the form of qualifying insurance policy
Statement of Assets and Liabilities:

Particulars As at
31 March 2023

'Changes in the Present Value of Obligation

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 30.43
Current service cost 4.60
Interest cost 217
Benefits paid 10.95)
|Re-measurement (or actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:

- change in demographic assumptions -

- change in financial assumptions 10.85)
- experience varfance (l.e. actual experiences vs assumptions) (2.29)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 33,11
Particulars At

31 March 2023

Change in Fair value of Plan Assets during the Perlod

Fair value of Plan Assets, Beginning of Period 4.52
Interest Income Plan Assets 0.32
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) (0.23)
Benefits Paid from Fund (0.94)
Fair value of Plan Assets, End of Period 3.67

Actual Return on Plan Assets

As at
Particulars 31 March 2023
Interest Income on Plan Assets 0.32
Remeasurements on Plan Assets (0.23)
Total 0.0%
Bifurcation of present value of obligation at the end of the year
As at
Particul
RERERE 31 March 2023
Classification of provisions
Current :
Non current 29,44
29.44
Statement of Profit and Lass:
For the year ended
PATHIELa 31 March 2023
E in the of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 4.60
Net interest cost 1.85
Total gnised in the § of Profit and Loss 6.45
(Gain)/Loss recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income
Re-measurement (or actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
- change In financial assumptions (0.85)
- experience variance (i.e. actual experiences vs assumptions) 2.29)
- return on plan assets (excluding Interest) 0.23
Components of defined benefit costs/(income) recognised in Other Comprehensive incoma (2.91)




Laxm{ Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standal Financial § for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

€} The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:

i For the year ended
31 March 2023
Discount rate 7.31!1
Salary growth rate Non :g . :
Age of retirement 58 years
Attrition / Withdrawal rates, based on age: (per annum) Non :‘ojﬂ ; ::
Mortality (table) e %ll):ii::!)

The discount rate assumed for current year, is determined by reference to market yield at the Balance sheet date on government bonds. The estimate of future salary
increases, c in actuarial take account of inflation, seniority, promatian and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

d} Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

LPartkuIll’! For the year ended
31 March 2023

Projected benefits payable In future years from the date of reporting

1st Following Year i
2nd Following Year 347
3rd Following Year 3.04
4th Following Year 1.30
5th Following Year 3.87
Sum of & to 10 years 14.53

e) Sensitivity Analysis:

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) are discount rate, salary growth rate, attrition rate and mortality. The
sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant. The results of the sensitivity analysis is given below:

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2023
Sensitivity Level
Decrease Increase
)
Discount rate 1% Increase/ Decrease 2.69 (2.35)
Salary growth rate 1% Increase/ Decrease (2.42) 1.68
Withdrwal rate 1% Increase/ Decrease (0.05)] 0.03

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding
all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the Defined Benefit Obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at
the end of the reporting period, which s the same method as applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation as recognised in the balance sheeThe sensitivity analysis
presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the Defined Benefit Obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in fsolation of
one ancther as some of the assumptions may be correlated,

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

(iii) Compensated absences
The obligation for as at year end March 31, 2023 amounts to INR 4.88 million
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Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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40 C Liabilities and Ci

(a) Description on matters considered as contingent liabllities:

As at
31 March 202
In respect of:
Corporate Guarantees(Note 40.1) 1.07
Total 1.07

B8 Commitments

There is no such Commitment existing as on 31 March 2023

Note 40.1
Details of corporate guarantees issued by the Company and Lisbility against as on March 31, 1023
Liabifity Outstanding against Corporate
Facility Availed By Purpose of corporate guarantee Gaurantee given to Corporate Guarantee amount Guarantees issued
Asst. Commisioner, Customs Security against Import of Goods under EQU Scheme ICICI Bank 1.07 1.07
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41 Related party disclosures
The list of related parties as identified by the Management is as under::

Relationship Name of Related Party
Individual having contrel / significant influence over companies
Subsidiary Laxmi Dental Lab USA INC
Signature Smiles Dental Clinke Pvt. Ltd.
Rich Smile Design LLP

, Techiab consuiting LLP
Bizdent Devices Pvt. Lid.
[Assoctate IECGMVR’MWHMU‘—
| Jointly controlied Entity Kids E Dental LLP
Directors and Key Management Personnel (KMP) M-, Rajesh Khakhar - Whole time Director & Chairman

[Mr. Sameer Merchant - CEO and Managing Director

(Mrs. Jigna R. Khakhar - Director (upto 20-Apr-2024)

Mr. Amrish Desai - Director {upta 27-Apr-2024)

Mr. Parag Bhimjiyani - Director (upto 10-Apr-2024)

Mr. Hasmukh Khakhar - Director (upto 20-Apr-2024)

mrs. Anjana Grewal (From 20-Jul-2014) - Independent Director

Mr. Devesh G Chawla (From 20-Jul-2024) - Independent Director

Mr. Rajesh § Dalal (From 20-Jul-2024) - Independent Director

Mr. Dharmesh Dattani - Chief Finance Officer

wr. Kartik Shah - Company Secretery and Compliance Officer (Upto 15-Jul-24)
i, - Com| Secretory and C: liance Officer (Fr 1-24)

of Directors and KMP mrs. Rupal Bhimifyani

Wr. Kunal Merchant

Mr. Parth Knakhar

Mrs. Bhavi Merchant

Mrs. Bhavna Dattani

mrs. Sonal Desat

Mrs. Dewilea Khakhar

Mrs. Neepa Dattani

Mr. Prithvi Khakhar

Mr_ Sanjay Khakhar

Entities in which KMP / relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence

Laxmi Dental International Pvt, Ltd,

8) Directors and Key Management Person Compensation

Far the year ended 31 March 2023

Mr. Rajesh Khakhar - Whole time Director & Chalrman 3
M. Sameer Merchant - CEQ and Managing Director 3.56
Mrs. Jigna R. Khakhar - Direclor (uplo 20-Apr-7024) 386
Me. Amirish Desal - Director (upto 27-Apr-2024) 1.9
Mr. Hasmuih Khakhar - Director - Director (upto 20-Apr-2024) 1.20
Mr. Dharmesh Dattani - Chief Finance Officer 3.46
Total Managerial Remuneration 18.13

b) Transactions with related parties

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Salary Expense
Ralatives of Directors and KMP
Mr. Parth Khakhar 1.48
Mr. Prithyi Khakhar 1.75
Mr. Sanjay Khakhar 1.00
M. Manan Khakhar 0.88
Mrs, Bhavi Merchant 238
Mrs. Bhavna Dattani 1.17
Mrs. Devika Khakhar 0.85
Mrs. Neepa Dattan| 1.37
Mrs. Sonal Desal 1.95
Mr. Shubh San|ay Khakhar 0.15
Ms. Varsha Khakhar 0.1
Mr, Rishi Amrish Desal 0.37
Ms, Siddht Khakhar 3.65
Rent Paid
Key Managerial Personnel

5 Mr, Rajesh Khakhar 0.67
Entities in which KMP / relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence
ASY Properties LLP 6.00




Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxml Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 11 March 20231
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Far the year ended 31 March 2023

Purchases
Subsidiary
Laxmi Dental Lab USA INC 23.95
. Bizdent Devices Pvt. Lid. 7.7
Rich Smile Design LLP 0.01
Sales
Subsidiary
Laxmit Dental Lab USA INC 10765
Signature Smiles Dental Clinic Pvt. Ltd. 426
Bizdent Devices Pvit, Lid, 45.99
Rich Smile Design LLP 4.16
Jointly controlled Entity
Kids E Dental LLP 2933
Other Income
Reimbursement of Expenses
Subsidiary
Laxmi Dental Lab USA INC L)
Signature Smiles Dental Clinic Pvt. Ltd. 0.73
Bizdent Devices Pvt, Ltd. 30.09
Rich Smile Design LLP 375
Interest Income
Subsidiary
Sienature Smiles Dental Clinic Pvt. Lid. 0.60
Rental Income
Subsidiary
Rich Smile Design LLP 0.12
Jointly controlled Entity
Kids E Dental LLP 0.06
Other Expenses
Subridiary
Bizdent Devices Pyl Ltd. 113
Interest Pald
Key Managerial Personnel
¥ Mr. Rajesh Khakhar o
Mr, Sameer Merchant o.;m
Mr, Amrish Desaf 0.18
Mr. Hasmukh Khakhar 0.15
Py
Jaintly contralled Entity
Kids E Dental LLP 8.35
Withdrawal Partners’ Current Account
Kids E Dental LLP 4.80
Lontribution Partners’ Current Account
Rich $mile Design LLP 979
Techlab consulting LLP 1.31
Loans Given during the Year
Subsidiary
Signature Smiles Dental Clinic Pyt Itd 1.60
Loans Repayment recelved during the Year
Subsidiary
Signature Smiles Dental Clinic Put Itd 9.50
Assoclate
ECG Plus Technalogles Pul. Ltd. 4.06

Losns Received during the Year
Directars & Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Rajesh Khakhar .70
Mr. Sameer Merchant 200
Mr. Amrish Desal .00
k Mr. Hasmukh Khakhar 6.00

Loans Repaid during the Year

Directors B Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Rajesh Khakhar 1.00
Mr. Amrish Desai 0.5




Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Motes forming part of the Speclal Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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€) Outstanding balances of related parties

As at 31 March 2023

Accounts Payables

5 Subsidiary
Bizdent Devices Pvt. Ltd 0.45
Laxmi Dental Lab USA INC 3.4
Account Receivables
Subsidiary
Laxmi Dental Lab USA INC 135.07
Bizdent Devices Pvt. Ltd. 24.61
Signature Smiles Dental Clinic Pvt. Ltd. 0.25
Rich Smile Design LLP 0.38
Entities in which KMP / relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence
Kids E Dental LLP 1.88

Other financial assets

Other Recelvables

Jointly controlied Entity

Kids E Dental LLP 4.62

Subsidiary

Rich Smile Design LLP 7.57

Techlab consulting LLP 0.29

Lontrol Account (Payabis)

Parent Entity

Rich Smile Design LLP 0.76

Bizdent Devices Pvt. Lid. 0.67

Control Account {Receival

Jointly controlled Entity

Kids E Dental LLP 0.9

Investment

Subsidiary

Laxmi Dental Lab USA INC 6482
' Signature Smiles Dental Clinic Pvt. Litd. 70.00

Birdent Devices Pvi. Ltd. 5.10

Rich Smile Design LLP 0.07

Techiab consulting LLP 005

Jeintly controlled Entity

Kids E Dental LLP 0.30

Subsidiary

Signature Smiles Dental Clinic Pvt Itd 39

Associate

ECG Plus Technologies Pvi. Ltd. on

I
Directors & Key Managerial Persannel

Mr, Rajesh Khakhar %70
Mr. Sameer Merchant 00
Mr. Amrish Desai 175
Mr. Hasmukh Khakhar .00
Managerial Remyneration Pavable
M. Rajesh Khakhar - Whole time Director & Chairmen 038
Me. Sameer Merchant - CEQ and Managing Director 0.3
Mrs. Jigna R. Khakhar - Director 041
Mr. Amrish Desal - Director 0.1z
Mr. Hasmukh Khakhar - Directar o.12
Mr, Dharmesh Dattani - Chief Finance Officer 0.30
Salary Expente Payable
Relatives of Directors and KMP
Mr. Parth Khakhar 0.40
Mr, Sanjay Khakhat 0.10
i M. Manan Khakhar 0.1z
Mrs. Bhavi Merchant 0.25
Mrs. Bhavna Dattant 0.15
Mrs, Devika Khakhar 008
Mrs. Neepa Dattani 0.15
Mry. Sonal Desal 0.2
Mr. Shubh Sanjay Khakhar 0.03
Ms. Varsha Khakhar 0.0
M. Rishi Amrish Desat 0.04
Ms, Siddhi Khakhar. 039

Corporate guarantees Amount
Personal guarantes provided by Directors and KMP




Laxmi Dantal Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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42 Fair Yalue Measurement

A The Carrying Yalue of Financial Assets by Categories i3 as follows:

As at
: 31 March 2023
‘Financial assets valued at amortized cost
Z Investment in subsidiary 140.04
Investments in Joint venture 0.30
Loans to athers L1
LLoans to Related parties 4.24
Other Financial assets 38.07
Trade Recefvables 291.18
Bank and bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 6.22
Cash and cash equivalents 5.74
Total financial assets measured at Cost 487.00
Total financial assets 487.00
B The Carrying Value of Financial Liabilities by Categories is as follows:
As at
31 March 1023
Measured at amortized cost
Borrowings 306.44
Lease liabilities 57.38
Trade Payable 182.73
Other Financial Liabilities 51.00
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 597.55
C  Fair value

As per Ind AS 107 “Financlal Instrument: Disclosure”, fair value disclosures are not required when the carrying
amounts reasonably approximate the fair value. Accordingly fair value disclosures have not been made for the
1. Trade Receivables

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

3. Other Bank Balances

4. Loans

5. Other financials Assets

6. Borrowings

7. Lease Liabilities

8. Trade Payables

9. Other Financial Liabilities

10.Investment in subsidiary
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Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxm| Dental Expert Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 11 March 2023
(All amaunts are In INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

43 Financial risk management

>

N

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily Lo liquidity risk, interest rate fluctuation risk, credit risk and foreign exchange fluctuation risk.

idity Risk
:::di:nsh is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet ts present and future cash and collateral obiigations without incurring unacceptable losses. The
Company's objective it to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet fts cash and collateral requirements, The Company closely monitors its position and
maintains adequate source of financing.
The contractual maturities of financial liabilities are as fallows:

As at 31 March 2021

Upta 1

On demand year 1to5 years More than 5 years Total
Non-current
Borrowings 3 . 99.40 11.56 113.02
Lease liabilities - . 33.00 - 33.00
Other financial liabilities . - 9.54 - 9.54
Current
Borrawings 152.89 40.53 - - 193.42
Lease Liabilities - 24.38 . 2438
Trade payables - 151.5% 29.14 - 182,73
Other financial liabilities - 41.46 = =2 41.46
Total 152.89 259.96 171.14 13.56 597.55
Interest Rate Risk
The Company manages its Interest rate risk by having a balanced partfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.
Exposure to interest rate risk

As at
31 March 2021

Variable rate borrowings 258.84
Fixed rate borrowings 47.60

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings. With all other variables held
constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

As at
31 March 2023
Sensitivity
1% increase in MCLR (2.59)
1% decrease in MCLR .59
Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that customers may not be abie to settle their abligations as agreed. Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived
from revenue earned from customers located in Inida, Credit risk is managed through periodic assessment of the financial retiability of customers, taking Into account
the financial condition, current economic trends, analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of trade receivables. Other financial instruments that are subject to credit
risk includes cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, loans and security deposits.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date fs primarily from trade recelvables which amounted to Rs 291.18 millions as at 31 March 2023 , The Company

provides loss allowance using Lhe ECL model on trade receivables by foliowing simplified approach. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an
individual customer basis,

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

The maximum exposure Lo credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in
financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The Company does a credibility check on the landiords before taking any property on lease and hasn't had a single instance of non-refund of security deposit on
vacating the leased property. The Company also in some cases ensure that the notice period rentals are adjusted against the security deposits and only differential, if
anv. Is paid out thereby further mitizating the non-realization risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Company has limited international transactions and thys its exposure to foreign exchange risk arising from its operating activities is low., Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is nat the Company’s functional currency, To mitigate
the Company's exposure to forefgn currency risk, non-INR Cash Flows are monitored in accordance with the Company’s risk management policies.

Foreign currency risk exposure:

— e —
As at 31 March 202)
uso EUR AED CHF

Financlal Assets
Trade Receivables 1.9 0.01 0.01
Financial Liability
Trade payable 0.38 6.92 : 0.00

Total L 2.31 0.93 0.01 0.00

4
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Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerty known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{(All amounts are in INR million except per share dato or as otherwise stated)

44 Capital ag: policies and

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and

all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capital

management is to maintain a strong capital base to ensure sustained growth in business and to maximize the

shareholders value and to ensure the Company's ablility to continue as a going concern. The capital management
" focuses to maintain an optimal structure that balances growth and maximizes shareholder value.

The Company has not distributed any dividend to its shareholders. The Company monitors gearing ratio 1.e. total debt
in proportion to its overall financing structure, l.e. equity and debt. Total debt comprises of non-current borrowing
which represents liability component of Convertible Preference Shares and current borrowing from ultimate holding
company of the Company. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The amount managed as capital by the Company are summarized as follows:

As at
Particulars 3 March 2023
Total Equity (i) 400.83
Total borrowings 306.44
Less: Cash and bank balances (including deposits with banks) (11.96)
Total debt (i) 194.48
Overall financing (iil)= {f)+{H) 695.31
Gearing ratio {il)/(1#) 42.35%
No changes were made In the ob) policies or pr for capital during the year ended March 31,
2023.
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Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxmi Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts are in INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

45 Ratlos
31-Mar-23
; Ratlos Denominator Ratio
1.16
{a) Current Ratio {times) Current Assets Current Liabilities
0.76
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio (times}  Total debt Total equity
© mﬂ‘f""" Coverage Rato b ing for debt service  Debt Service -]
Profit after tax less pref. 0.04
(d) Return on Equity Ratio (%) DI Average total equity
(e llr:':::?w Tericyee, Ratio Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory 310
Trade Receivables Turnover Average Trade 4.89
) Ratsa wmes) Fredtsae Recefvables
Trade Payables Turnover 0.88
) Ratio (times) Credit Purchases Average Trade Payables
Net Turnover i
) mmi‘f’"‘l Umover BT e from opevations  Warking Capital T
0.01
(1) Net Profit Ratio (%) Net profit after tax Revenue from operations
0.07
Retu: Capital Employed
i earr Capital employed
{k] Return on Investment (%)  Income from #) Average g
: #  Income from invetment represents interest income from fixed deposit
#¥  Average i ¥ Lreasury in form of current and non current fixed deposit
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Laxmi Dental Limited (Farmerly known as Laxmi Dental Expart Private Limited)
Motes forming part of the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
Al amounts are in INR million except per share data or as otherwise stated)

46 Additional regulatary information
1. Title deeds of immovable property are held in the name of the Company.

. Details of loans given, investment made and guarantee given covered u/s 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013
made by the Company
Sna, Nilme of the Company Balance as at March
31, 2023

1| Laxmi Dental Lab USA, INC.

4]8i2dent Devices Private Limited

Rich Smile Design LLP

6| Kids E Dental LLP
7| Techlab Consulting LLP

Loan given by the Company
Sno. MName of the Company Rate of Interest Due date Secured/Unsecured Purpose of loan March 31, 2023
1|Signature Smiles Dental Clinic Pyt Itd - Loan | 8%p.a Repayable on demand Umsecured For Business ‘ 19
Operation Purpose
2|ECG Plus Technologles Pvt, Lid. - Loan 8%p.a Repayable on demand Unsecured For Business /) 0.3
Operation Purpose

iti. Utilisation of Borrowed funds - .
Na funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either fram borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds| by the Company to ar in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”)
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall tend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Uitimate Beneficlaries).

The Company has not recetved ary fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend ar invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfl of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

v, Revaluation of property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets
The Company has not revalued its property, Plant and Equipment (including Right af use Atsels) and intangible assets, thus valuation by a reglitered valuer as defined under rule 2 of the Compantes (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules,
2017 is not applicable,

¥. Detalls of benami property held
The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been inftisted or pending againit the campany for holding any Benami property.

vi. Witful Defaulter
The Company has not defaulted nor been declared wilful cefauiter by any bank of financial institution or other lender.

vii. Quarterly Returns
The Company has availed laans from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company files statement of current assets with the bank on periodical bass. Reconciliation of quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed with
banies or financial institutions

Quarter Name of the Bank Particulars As per books Amount as reparled in Discrepancy Reason for Material
the Quarterly Discrepancy
Return/Statement

Jun-22__ [ICICI BANK LTD Stock 272.85 270.40 Refer Note 1
Sep-22_ [ICICI BANK LTD. Stock 205.85 199.02
Dec-2z_|ICICI BANK LTD Stock 200.56 208.44
March-23 [ICICI BANK LTD Stock 195.11 .33
Jun-22_[ICICI BANK LTD Receivable 163.84 267.50
Sep-22  [ICICI BANK LTD Receivable 250.14 284.12
Dec21  [ICICI BANKLTD 32744 329.68
[march-23 [ICICI BANK LTD Receivable 291.18 313.14
ICICI BANK LTD Payable 106.31 111.39
ICICI BANK LTD Payabie 76.10 73.97
ICICI BANK LTD. Payable 50.75 52.72
[rarch-23 JiciC Bank LTD Payable 182.73 75.15

1 Refer Note

The reason for reconciliation between quarterly returns o statements of current assets fied with banks are as follows:

1) lventories:
a arising from the of sales cut-off
b. Provision for slow maving, non-maving

2.) Trade Receivables:

a. Loss allowance made for rade receivables

B. Adjustments to trade recefvables due ta period-end cut-off procedures
€. Remeasurement of balances due Lo foreign exchange rate fluctuations,
d. Dffsetting advance frpm customers against trade recaivabies

3.) Trade Payabies:
a. Offsetting advance to suppliers against trade payable

wit, with struck of

The Company does not have any transactions with the Companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

bx. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Regiitrar of Companies (ROC)
The Company coes not have any charges or which is yet to b with ROC beyond the statutory period.

X. Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

xi C with approved of

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangements as approved the competent in of
i el bl : app by petent autharity in terms of Section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013, thus. the disclosures relating to compliance with approved scheme of




Laxmi Dental Limited (Formerly known as Laxm| Dental Export Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Special Purposs Standalone Financlal Statements for the year snded 31 March 2023
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xi Undisciosed Income
\'hr(w»unymmh‘naﬂywmm-mwhhmdmtmhnbmunvhnumnmmuunmvhmuummmeka1n|.

il Detatls of Crypta Currency of Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current year.

47 AsatMarch 31, 2023, the Company has trade from one of it’s l:MIH‘MMMMIMWMEWIOLHMﬂhmhluﬂdmmmmTm
has resulted in i of various circulars and fssued under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (“FEMA Regulations™), However, subsequent to March 31, 2023, the Company has collected balances
-rmunm.ulul119.1tmm¢-ﬁ-¢mmmuhmmhh-:em—hmwmu'w-mmmmmnmmn.md.mmlu-mum-umhcmwumhmd-uuudmw
Th-mmldIMCMnmhlmmwmhwhthMmummum.hwl—mmuhmlmwlm.wW,umﬂlﬁmm.

48 Corporate Soclal Responsibility
The Company does not meet the criteria specified under section 135 for CSR applicability. As a result, the Company is not obligated to establish » CSR committee or engage in CSR activities as defined under the Act.

49 Subsequent Event
1 Conversien of the Company from Private Limited to Public Limited
rm:mmmmnmmmmwwlm‘mmu,mu.u-cmmmmmrm'nnuLﬁmwcmwumumucumnuhmummw
changed to ‘Laxmi Dental Limited* from ‘Laxmi Dental Exports Private Limited,
I Sale of business division
The Group's business division in USA, 1.¢.,"Alvy Dental Supply” which fs primarily engaged in the business of Dental Lab Dentai and Dantal Mach The Group entered into a Contract for Sale of Business dated 16 August,
2024 te sell this business division,

I ESOP scheme 2014
m-de«mmmwmmmmomm,mu-wmmc—nnmv.m4.Hhﬂ-ﬂmmnmmu.mn.mmmnlymm-nmmmu.zuq.m
unsdm‘mwwumwmwtmuwmwmmwhm-wn1xuwam¢p-uwuunnm.
nmm«nﬂmnmummgun:unpuym:m.mmweonmmmuurmm.

50 "0.00" Denctes amount less than INR Ten thousand.

51 nmghummummmmmwmmwumua-—:wnmmm«mm,m4
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